
MEETING: COMMITTEENAME

DATE: MeetingDateLegal

TIME: MeetingTime

VENUE: MeetingLocation

DECISION MAKER: COMMITTEENAME

MembersExpectedShortCllrRolesRows

COMMITTEE OFFICER: MeetingContact
MeetingContact_2

Telephone: CommitteeTel
Fax: CommitteeFax
E-mail: CommitteeEmail

The Cabinet is responsible for making what are known as Key Decisions, 
which will be notified on the Forward Plan.  Items marked with an * on the 
agenda involve Key Decisions
A key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution, is: -
● any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and 

Capital Programme approved by the Council and which requires a gross 
budget expenditure, saving or virement of more than £100,000 or more 
than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the greater

● any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact 
on a significant number of people living or working in two or more Wards

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist.

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A
Items marked with an * involve key decisions

Item 
No.

Subject/Author(s) Wards Affected

 



Agenda Item 3 

1 
 

 
Sefton Consultation and Engagement Panel 

 

 Held on Friday 7th July 2017 
Commencing at 10.00 a.m. at Bootle Town Hall  

 
 
Present:  Councillor Paulette Lappin (in the Chair) 
 Councillor Lynne Thompson 
 Councillor Simon Jamieson 
 Councillor Les Byrom 
  Nigel Bellamy, VCF Sector Representative 

Dr Mike Homfray, VCF Sector Representative 
  Sharon Lomax, Health & Social Care Manager, Sefton MBC 
  Morgan Finnegan, Young Advisor 
  Joanne Navin, CCG 
 Lynn Cooke, CCG 

Moira McGuinness, CCG 
 Jane Little-Smith, Parks & Greenspace, Sefton MBC 
 John Smith, Merseytravel 

Brian Goodwin, Highways Development & Design, Sefton MBC 

                     Jayne Vincent, Consultation, Engagement & Performance Officer 
Sefton MBC 

 Carol Cater, Service Manager, Commissioning, Sefton MBC 
 Lesley Smith, Admin Support, Sefton MBC 
  
Apologies: Councillor Sue McGuire 
  Graham Bayliss, Lay Member CCG 
 Wendy Kenyon, Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service 

Laura Goad, Young Advisor Representative 
 
  

 

 

Action 

1. Welcome & Apologies 

 Councillor Lappin welcomed everybody to the meeting. Introductions were 
made. 

 

2. Declarations of Interest 

 There were no declarations of interest. 

 

3. Minutes of the Consultation and Engagement Panel held 
        19th May 2017 
          The minutes were agreed as a true and accurate record of the 
          Meetings. 

 

4. Matters Arising 

Jayne received feedback from the Housing team whereby the briefing 
session offered to Elected Members was not fully taken up, due to it being 
during the election periods, but an offer was then made, to attend ‘Strand by 
Me’ 

 

 

 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

 

 

Action 

Cllr Lappin suggested the Housing Team to contact her in order to follow this 
up. 

Information has been received from Sally Belsham and Colin Hilton 
In the O&S minutes a report was presented on 21/3 and also presented to 
Council on 20th April; this relied on people to look into the background 
papers. 

In response to Mike Homfray on the progress of item 9 (Swim Local Pilot). 
Jayne is meeting with Tina this week about the case study information. When 
this is complete, Jayne will ask for it to be brought back to Panel 

Jayne 
Vincent 

 

 

 

Jayne 
Vincent 

Part A  

5. Feedback and Evaluation Report – King’s Gardens, Southport: 
Post Restoration Survey 

Jane Little-Smith fed back to the Panel today on the King’s Gardens, 
Southport: Post Restoration Survey. North West Research were employed to 
carry out an independent consultation that formed part of the evaluation for 
the Heritage Lottery Fund; methods used were an online survey through e-
consult, face to face survey on site, focus group sessions with young people 
and the Friends of King’s Gardens, and testimonials were sought from 
schools. 

All objectives were met and satisfaction levels have increased with no 
underlying issues.  The conclusion was that King’s Gardens is a good 
example of being fully accessible. 

Questions/Comments 

Councillor Lappin expressed this was a very good piece of work, and that 
Jane should speak to the Communications team to promote the good work. 

Councillor Jamieson asked has any security been built in to tackle the issues 
around vandalism.  Jane answered that vandalism is across Southport and 
that Merseyside Police and partners have been working together to tackle 
this. 

Jayne asked how the King’s Gardens group are encouraging people to 
volunteer. 

The response was there has been a large surge of interest, but as the 
gardens don’t have a natural community like other parks, they are looking for 
volunteers from other areas.  

Cllr Lappin advised Jane to link in with Sefton CVS for their contacts, to 
which Jane confirmed she has done. 

Cllr Lappin commended Jane on a very good piece of work. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Jane 
Little-
Smith 

6.     Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and  
        Consultation Activity – Liverpool City Region Rights of  Way 

Improvement Plan 2018-2028 
John Smith from Merseytravel presented a consultation proposal on the 
Liverpool City Region Rights of Way Improvement Plan, 2018 to 2028; this is 
a statutory duty across the city region.  The Improvement Plan provides an 
opportunity to ensure local transport planning makes use of the rights of way 
network, in both rural and urban areas. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



3 
 

 

 

Action 

There is a duty on all local authorities to review their plan every 10 years and 
Merseyside is under review now. 
The consultation is being delivered by Merseytravel and commenced in June 
until the end of September 2017. There is a dedicated web page on the 
Merseytravel website where consultation materials will be made available 
and an email address for consultation responses has been created.  
 
Webpage:  http://www.merseytravel.gov.uk/about-us/local-transport-
delivery/Pages/Public-Rights-of-Way-Strategy.aspx 
 
Email Address:  rowip@merseytravel.gov.uk 

   
Questions/Comments: 
Councillor Jamieson asked about consulting with Parish councils, civil 
societies and people with local knowledge.  John confirmed stakeholder lists 
were requested and used; Brian Goodwin followed up that for each district 
there is a Merseyside Local Access Forum who have all been informed. 
Mike Homfray commented that thought should be given to questions being 
more specific as experience has evidenced this attracts a better response. 
Also focus groups should be given thought to hold.  Cllr Jamieson asked that 
if focus groups do go ahead, can Members be informed to enable them to 
attend. 
Jayne Vincent pointed out that the current document is quite large and could 
a summary be written. 
The response was an accessible executive summary can be provided and 
John and Brian will return to Panel to provide feedback of the results. 
 

 

7.     Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and    
        Consultation Activity – Community Equipment Stores 

Sharon Lomax presented a report on the Community Equipment Stores 
review which had been presented to the Health & Well Being Board in the 
middle of June 2017 and to Overview & Scrutiny.  It will be presented to 
Cabinet in January 2018, following consultation. 
The workforce has been kept fully informed about the review and a meeting 
has been held with Healthwatch to provide the background. 
Equipment is provided by the Community Equipment Stores, to both children 
and adults from birth to death.  Over time, the demand for equipment is 
increasing however; staff numbers has not increased to meet this demand. 
The consultation will focus on the experience of using the service, views on 
self-collection and not having equipment picked up when it is no longer 
required.  
 
Questions/Comments: 
Mike Homfray suggested under question 7 to list a couple of examples of 
equipment that cannot be reused, to make it easier for people.  Sharon 
appreciated this and will revisit the questions. 

Cllr Byrom stated this is a very interesting area of work, making a difference 
to people’s lives, and how it could be useful involving the 3rd sector using 
vehicles for example.  Although Sharon acknowledged this, there is the issue 
of gaining the right level of permission to do this and Sharon confirmed she is 
currently working with Elected Members and GP membership etc. 

Sharon will feedback to the Panel, the results of the consultation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sharon 
Lomax 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

http://www.merseytravel.gov.uk/about-us/local-transport-delivery/Pages/Public-Rights-of-Way-Strategy.aspx
http://www.merseytravel.gov.uk/about-us/local-transport-delivery/Pages/Public-Rights-of-Way-Strategy.aspx
mailto:rowip@merseytravel.gov.uk


4 
 

 

 

Action 

8.     Feedback Report – Together a Stronger Community Using Co-
Production 
Jayne Vincent presented a feedback report today on the activities taking 
place as part of embedding co-productive practice in the council and as part 
of National Co-production Week. 
In January’s Cabinet, when considering the Framework for Change 
Programme, it agreed to adopt the New Realities ‘can do’ approach to 
collaboration and also agreed a number of principles  to support engagement 
and consultation. One of the principles included a stronger focus on co-
production. 
There is a need to review and strengthen current activities and it is also 
important to develop and provide awareness of how to do this. 
As part of this Panel meeting, there will be a condensed version of the Youth 
Voice and Participation Toolkit that is currently being rolled out, with some 
training.  Also presentations from the Making a Difference Group, Education 
& Health Care Plan animation and a presentation (film) on the Botanic Hub. 
 
Questions/Comments: 

No comments were made. 

 

 

9.     Any other Business – Review of Local Health Policies 
(Presentation) 
A joint working group has been established across South Sefton, Southport 
and Formby, Liverpool, Knowsley, Halton, St Helens and Warrington CCGs 
Representatives in the working group include; GPs, Public Health, Medicines 
Management, Commissioning Manager and Clinical Leads from each CCG  
In total there are over 100 policies being reviewed in stages to make both the 
review process and engagement process manageable. 
So far, 36 policies have been reviewed and have each been assessed for 
Equality Impact Assessments. 
Each policy has been RAG rated either green (no change) or red (change 
made) 
Based on this, 18 policies have been identified as requiring engagement with 
the public.  
The remaining policies will be reviewed in batches of 20-30 policies and 
engagement planned according to the outcomes of these reviews over the 
next 12-18 months. 
An intention is to make better use of NHS resources, ensuring that available 
treatments provide the greatest health gains to patients, based on up to date 
guidelines from NHS England and NICE, methods and technology.   
Where possible, the review also aims to give a more standardised approach 
across the seven CCGs.  
Engagement is designed to be specific and targeted to relevant groups and 
EIRA are considered at each point. 
 
The presentation will be circulated to the Panel, following the meeting. And 
CCG will return to Panel in September to provide feedback.     
 
More information on the first consultation can be found by visiting the 
following two links: 
http://www.southportandformbyccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/current-
exercises/reviewing-local-health-policies/ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3

http://www.southportandformbyccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/current-exercises/reviewing-local-health-policies/
http://www.southportandformbyccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/current-exercises/reviewing-local-health-policies/


5 
 

 

 

Action 

 
http://www.southseftonccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/current-exercises/reviewing-
local-health-policies/ 
 
Questions/Comments: 
Councillor Jamieson asked when each set of policies becomes live, can the 
Panel be informed to remind Members to enable feedback to political groups. 
 

10.   Date and Time of Next (Full) Meeting 

 Friday 22nd September 2017, 10.00 a.m. Bootle Town Hall with video 
conferencing at Southport Town Hall. 

 

All to 
note 

Part B of the meeting was a short Co-Production Workshop with 
Panel Members and Young Advisors 

As part of co-production week, an opportunity was given during the second 
part of the meeting to showcase work that has already happening, with 
presentations and short films, followed by a short training session by the 
young advisors. 
 
Karen Gray provided background of the work of the MAD (Making a 
Difference) Group and there was a short presentation and film by two young 
representatives. 
 
Another presentation was given by Adele Hoskisson around SEN and 
disability, about the necessity to work together and how getting it right now 
will impact positively in the future. 
https://www.seftondirectory.com/kb5/sefton/directory/site.page?id=FpnEqzn1
mtc&localofferchannel=0 
 
The Panel also received the following: 

 A viewing of the New Realities Animation. 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fw3SxDmEyGY 
 
A presentation (and film) on the Education and Health Care Plan animation: 
https://www.seftondirectory.com/kb5/sefton/directory/site.page?id=FpnEqzn1
mtc&localofferchannel=0 
 
A presentation (and film) on the Botanic Hub: 
https://youtu.be/6r7Gqis_yPc  
 
Following the presentations, there was a short training session by young 
advisors about working in collaboration with young people and standards to 
abide by. 
A toolkit was used, that offers a checklist for people to measure the level of 
youth participation in their organisation. 
Overall, it was agreed that most organisations include young people in their 
policies, however, more can be done to put this into practice. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3

http://www.southseftonccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/current-exercises/reviewing-local-health-policies/
http://www.southseftonccg.nhs.uk/get-involved/current-exercises/reviewing-local-health-policies/
https://www.seftondirectory.com/kb5/sefton/directory/site.page?id=FpnEqzn1mtc&localofferchannel=0
https://www.seftondirectory.com/kb5/sefton/directory/site.page?id=FpnEqzn1mtc&localofferchannel=0
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=fw3SxDmEyGY
https://www.seftondirectory.com/kb5/sefton/directory/site.page?id=FpnEqzn1mtc&localofferchannel=0
https://www.seftondirectory.com/kb5/sefton/directory/site.page?id=FpnEqzn1mtc&localofferchannel=0
https://youtu.be/6r7Gqis_yPc


This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6 

 

 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: Friday 22nd September 2017  
 
Title: Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity – 

Review of Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2018-19   
 
Report of:  Christine Finnigan, Partnership & Local Taxation Manager  
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To receive information with regard to the consultation plans being 

developed with regard to the Review of Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
2018-19. 

 
2. Background 
 
 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is 

to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
3. Review of Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2018-19   
 
 3.1 This report sets out the basis of consultation on plans to revise Sefton 

Council’s Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme for working age 
claimants, which will operate from 1 April 2018.  

 
 3.2  At its meeting on 22 June 2017, Informal Cabinet reviewed the options 

put forward for consultation and approved the following: 
 

 To review the Council Tax Reduction Scheme in advance of 2018/19 

 Agreed options on proposed changes to the scheme for consultation 

 Agreed the proposals as set out in the consultation questionnaire with 
a view to these forming the basis for consultation. 

 Recommended consultation with the Welfare Reform Reference 
Group. 

 Agreed the proposed approach and timetable. 
 
 3.3 On 10th July 2017 the Cabinet Member for Regulatory, Compliance and 

Corporate Services was asked to agree the broad scheme framework for 
public consultation and gave delegated authority to the Head of 
Corporate Resources to finalise the consultation material.  

 
 3.4 The Council has a statutory requirement to review and agree its Local 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme each financial year. The process 
includes consulting with major preceptors, publishing a draft Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme and then consulting with interested parties before the 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6 

 

 

final Council Tax Reduction Scheme is adopted by 31 January for the 
following financial year. 

 
 3.5 No changes were made to the scheme for 2017/18. 
 
 3.6 There are two major drivers for changing the Council Tax Reduction 

Scheme in 2018/19. Firstly Government are making significant welfare 
reform changes between April 2016 to April 2019 and secondly the Full 
Service roll out of Universal Credit from October 2017.  As the Council 
Tax Reduction Scheme operates within these frameworks, these 
changes will have an impact upon the operation of the Council’s local 
scheme. 

 
 3.7 It should also be noted that the amount of Council Tax Support 

Administration Subsidy Grant has reduced from £476,183 for 2016/2017 
to £460,266 for 2017/18. The 2018/19 grant has yet to be announced but 
is expected to continue to reduce.  

 
 3.8 As a result of these issues it is proposed that the Council review its local 

scheme with the following key objectives:-.  
 

 Align key welfare reform changes to the Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme (CTR); 

 Maintain fairness, consistency and at the same time cost of the  

 CTR scheme; 

 Work more effectively with Universal Credit (UC), recognising that UC    
makes provision for children, disability, housing and caring   
responsibilities;  

 Deliver administrative efficiencies where possible in support of the 
scheme.  

 
4.    The Consultation 
 
 4.1 Prior to revising or replacing their scheme the Council must, in 

accordance with Government legislation: 
 

 Consult with any major preceptors; 

 Publish a draft scheme in such a manner it thinks fit; 

 Consult with other such persons it considers may have an interest in         
the scheme. 

 
 4.2  Plans to revise the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2018/19 will not 

affect all current working age claimants, only those affected by the 
proposals as detailed in the consultation questionnaire.  

 
 4.3  Any changes in respect of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 

persons of pension age are not part of this consultation as the 
regulations for their scheme is prescribed by Central Government.  

 
 4.4 The duty to consult extends to all affected households and major 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6 

 

 

preceptors as well as interested parties. This means our consultation will 
be using accessible3 formats and cover several areas, to allow as many 
people as possible to have their say, the main methods being:- 

 

 On-line consultation 

 Web link on emails sent to customers during the consultation process 

 E-mail survey to Major Preceptors and other interested parties e.g. 
voluntary sector organisations, private/registered social landlords etc.   

 Hard copies at public information points (Libraries, One Stop Shops, 
Citizens Advice Sefton) 

 Stakeholder events e.g. Private and Registered Social Landlord forum 
  
 4.5      We will advertise our consultation using:- 
 

 Stakeholder events, including our community contacts,  to get the 
message out to as many hard to reach groups as possible. 

 Press releases to local newspapers  

 Our website 

 Telephone message queues  

 Social media (Twitter)  

 Email footers  

 Television screen in our One Stop Shops 

 Notifications in landlord’s payment schedules 
 
 4.6  The consultation will run for 6 weeks from 25 September 2017 to 3 

November 2017 
  
 4.7  The consultation will seek to engage with members of the public, Council 

Tax payers, the voluntary, faith and community sector and external 
agencies, as well as the Council’s Major Precepting authorities on the 
proposed changes (this list is not exhaustive).  

 
 4.8  The consultation project proposal will ensure a wide audience is 

engaged. 
 
 4.9  Supporting material will be produced, namely a questionnaire which will 

be in an Easy Read version, together with case studies/examples 
showing the effect of the changes.   

 
 4.10  The proposed activities and timeline for the delivery of the consultation 

and engagement activity is as follows:-. 
    

 Prepare resources including making arrangements for any public 
sessions (room hire, officer attendance, send out invites, etc. finalising 
questionnaires, etc).  

 Add information to E-consult (online consultation tool)  

 Carry out engagement and consultation activity (29 September 2017 
to  3 November 2017) 

 Consultation and impact assessment report to be prepared for 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6 

 

 

Cabinet Report submission deadline 4 December 2017 (Cabinet 
Meeting 11  January 2018; Full Council 28 January 2018.   

 
 4.11    The proposed activities and timeline for the delivery of the Consultation   

Analysis & Feedback activity is as follows:-  
 

 Provide consultation and engagement feedback report to Consultation   
and Engagement Panel at their meeting on 16 March 2018  

 Feedback results to participants including publishing Consultation &  
Engagement Report on 9 March 2018 

 
5. Legal Department Comments 
 
 5.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 

contained in this report and has made suggestions on what to include in 
the consultation. 

 

6. Recommendations 
 
 
 6.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  
  a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the 

review of Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2018-19.  
 
  b) Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 

their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above consultation. 
 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

Public Engagement & Consultation Panel 

PROJECT PROPOSAL  

INSTRUCTIONS FOR USE 
 
Each box contains a form field for you to type in text or select an option by clicking it with your 
mouse.  Some of the boxes show information to help you complete the field when you place the 
cursor on the “click here …” field. 
 
When you have completed the form, save it as a Word document. 

 

Project Title: Review of Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2018/19 Consultation   

Is your project linked to: (please choose from the drop-down below)  

Choose an item. 

Lead officer: Christine Finnigan Contact 
no  

0151 934 4161 

Designation Partnership & Local 
Taxation Manager  

E-mail christine.finnigan@sefton.gov.uk 

How does your consultation relate to the Council’s Core Purpose (please tick) 

√ Protect the most vulnerable 

√ Facilitate confident and resilient communities 

n/a Commission, broker and provide core services 

n/a Place – Leadership and Influencer 

n/a Drivers of change and reform 

√ Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity 

n/a Greater income for social investment 

n/a Cleaner, Greener 

Which of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Priorities does your Consultation relate 
to (please tick) 

√ 
Ensure all children have a positive start in life  
 

n/a 
Support people early to prevent and treat avoidable illnesses and reduce 
inequalities in health  
 

n/a 
Support older people and those with long term conditions and disabilities to 
remain independent and in their own homes  

n/a 
Promote positive mental health and wellbeing  
 

√ 
Seek to address the wider social, environmental and economic issues that 
contribute to poor health and wellbeing  

√

 
Build capacity and resilience to empower and strengthen communities 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6 

 

Does this consultation relate to an item on the Forward Plan?  If so which one? 

Yes  

Other partners involved (please state if internal or external to the Council) 

None 

(Planned) start 
date 

(Planned) end 
date: 

What is the allocated budget? 

25/09/17 03/11/17 Limited direct costs anticipated which will be 
funded from existing budgets/  

Background/Rationale 

The Council must review and agree its Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme each 
financial year. The process includes consulting with major preceptors, publishing a draft 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme and then consulting with interested parties before the final 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme is adopted by 31 January for the following financial year. 
 
No changes were made to the scheme for 2017/18. 
 
There are two major drivers for changing the Council Tax Reduction scheme in 2018/19. 
Firstly Government are making significant welfare reform changes between April 2016 to 
April 2019 and secondly the Full Service roll out of Universal Credit from October 2017.  As 
Council Tax Reduction scheme operates within these frameworks, these changes will have 
an impact upon the operation of the Council’s local scheme. 
 
It should also be noted that the amount of Council Tax Support Administration Subsidy 
Grant has reduced from £476,183 for 2016/2017 to £460,266 for 2017/18. The 2018/19 
grant has yet to be announced but is expected to continue to reduce.  
 
As a result of these issues it is proposed that the Council seek to engage with its major 
preceptors; Council Tax Reduction Scheme claimants, other residents, members of the 
public, private and social landlords, the voluntary and community sector and external 
partners and agencies on the proposed changes to its local scheme.  
 
 

Aims & Objectives 

The Council believes the proposed changes to its current Council, Tax Reduction Scheme 
will benefit those working age residents on low incomes and in need of help with their 
Council Tax bills, with the following key aims/objectives:-.  

• Align key welfare reform changes to the Council Tax Reduction Scheme; 

• Maintain fairness, consistency and at the same time cost of the Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme; 

• Work more effectively with Universal Credit, recognising that Universal Credit makes 
provision for children,  disability, housing and caring responsibilities;  

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6 

 

• Deliver administrative efficiencies where possible in support of the scheme. 

Target Audience 

Major preceptors (Police and Crime Commissioner; Merseyside Fire and Rescue Service) 

Council Tax Reduction Scheme claimants 

Selection of Council Taxpayers not in receipt of Council Tax Reduction 

Members of the public 

Private landlords 

Social Sector landlords 

Voluntary, faith and community sector agencies 

Other external partners and agencies  

 

Methodology (Please also include any details of any accessible methods) 

Launch the consultation  

Publish the draft scheme and commence 6 week consultation from Monday 25th 
September 2017 until Friday 3rd November 2017. 

Publicise the consultation through the Council website/social media (Twitter). 

On line consultation response form  

Hard copy response form  

Communications Plan (If Council, please also contact Corporate Communications) 

Press release promoting the e-consult questionnaire  

Council website/social media (Twitter). 

Telephone message queues 

Email footers 

Television screen in the One Stop Shops 

Inform all Ward, Parish and Town Councillors 

Meeting with landlords  

Write to all relevant groups within the target audience at the beginning of the consultation.  

All information will be available in an accessible easy-read format, with audio version.   

Key Message Audience Method 

A review of the Council’s Local Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme for 2018/19 with the aim 
of aligning key Government welfare reform 
changes to the Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme; maintaining fairness, consistency 
and at the same time cost of the Council 

As above  As detailed in the 
Communication Plans 
above.  

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6 

 

Tax Reduction Scheme; working more 
effectively with Universal Credit, recognising 
that Universal Credit makes provision for 
children,  disability, housing and caring 
responsibilities; delivering administrative 
efficiencies where possible in support of the 
scheme. 

 

Potential barriers to involvement and action to overcome barriers 

There are a number of potential barriers that stop people getting involved in the 
consultation. These include: 

 Lack of awareness about the consultation process 

 Language barriers of ethnic; migrant individuals who reside in the Borough. 
We will address the above by ensuring we have an effective media campaign to encourage 
participation. 

Engage with migrant workers by consulting with the Migrant Workers Sefton Community 
Charity. 

Engage with disability groups across Sefton 

Engage with ethnic groups across Sefton 

How will you protect the confidentiality of participants?  

Comments received will not be attributable to individuals.  

 

How and when do you intend to report or publish the findings? 

The findings of the consultation will be provided in a report to Cabinet on 11th January 
2018 and Full Council on 28th January 2018. 

Level and type of patient/public engagement (place a tick in all that apply) 

Tick Level Description 

√ Informing 
Giving people information about something (a limited opportunity 
for them to be involved) 

√ Consulting 
Getting people’s views to help you develop/change your 
services/plans 

√ 
Deciding 
together 

Making decisions using patients’ and public’s views 

√ Acting together 
Local people will be involved in making decisions and reviewing 
your plans/services 

n/a 
Supporting 
local initiatives 

Local people will have the opportunity to lead, develop and 
deliver activities independently 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6 

 

Does your project include: 

 Yes/No If No please explain 

Questionnaire 
(Please attach .  The Panel 
will not be able to consider 
your proposal if it is not 
available in advance for 
them to consider) 

Yes . 

Other materials  
(i.e. promotional materials) 

No No other promotional material is required for the 
survey 

A stakeholder map 
(a tool to help you identify 
your target audience – 
included in toolkit) 

No Target audience has been identified through 
past consultations.   

Reference to existing data or 
information that has already 
been completed  
(i.e. recent consultation/ 
research where results can 
be used to inform your 
consultation) 

No There is a statutory requirement for the council 
Tax Reduction Scheme to be reviewed each 
year and any changes consulted on. 

Any other information you would like to provide? 

No  

 

 

 

If you require further information please contact either Jayne Vincent on 0151 934 3733 

 
Signature of Project Lead: Date: 
 
Manager Approval: Date: 
 
 

 
Please return this form electronically to:- 
 
Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk  
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

  

 

 

 

Consultation on: 

The Sefton Council Local 
Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme 2018-19 - Draft 

 

 

 

www.sefton.gov.uk 

Corporate Finance & ICT 
 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6a  
 

2 
 

Consultation on: 
The Sefton Council Local Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme 2018/19 - Draft 

 
As it is required to do by law, the Council is reviewing the Council Tax 
Reduction (CTR) Scheme which supports residents with low incomes in 
paying their Council Tax. 
 
The consultation is being brought to your attention to give you as much 
chance as possible to respond and give us your views. 
 
The scheme has been running since April 2013, and has successfully 
supported pensioner and working age households. 
 

What we plan to do for 2018/19 and why. 
 
As a result of the Government making alterations to the Housing Benefit 
Scheme and other welfare reform changes, there is now the need to 
consider making some technical adjustments to our local Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme for non-pensioner claimants only, so that both 
schemes are more aligned. 
  
Sefton Council is getting a lot less money from the Government towards 
the important services that it provides and local councillors have to find 
ways to save money. Making some minor technical changes will make 
the Council’s Scheme easier and less costly to administer for the 
Council. 
 
Plans to revise the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2018/19 will not 
affect all current working age claimants, only those affected by the 
proposals as detailed in the consultation questionnaire 
 
Pensioner Claimants 
 
We do not propose to make any changes to the scheme for pensioner 
claimants.  This is because the scheme for pensioners is prescribed by 
the Government at a national level. So pensioner claimants will continue 
to receive the same level of support as in 2017/18, except where their 
circumstances change or there are changes in Government legislation. 

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6a  
 

3 
 

Non-Pensioner Claimants 

The Council is considering a number of proposals. We have put together 
some information to help you understand what impact the changes may 
have and some case studies of what this may mean for claimants. 
 
We want your views whether the technical adjustments should be part of 
our Scheme or not, and to what extent they will impact on both claimants 
and the community. 
 
Our current Scheme helps residents with low incomes pay their Council 
Tax provided they have savings of less than £16,000 (pension age) or 
£6,000 (non-pensioners).  
 
In June 2017, there were 26,883 Council Tax Reduction scheme 
claimants in Sefton (12,447 pensioner age and 14,436 working age). 
 

What could the changes mean for different groups of 
people affected by the proposals? 
 
While we cannot calculate how these changes could affect everyone 
receiving Council Tax Reduction, we have put together some information 
to help you to understand what impact the changes may have on 
different groups of people.  We have based estimates on the 2017/18 
Council Tax rates and show what happens if we implement each option 
in 2018/9. 
 
Case Studies Insert Case Studies Examples here  
 
 

We want your views 
 
We want to ensure that anyone who has an interest in the scheme has 
an opportunity to have their say.  We are seeking feedback from local 
people, landlords, organisations and community support groups about 
these changes. 
 
To review the current 2017/18 Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme go 
to www.sefton.gov.uk/counciltax. 
 
The consultation runs for 6 weeks from 25th September 2017 until 3 
November 2017 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/counciltax


Agenda Item 6a  
 

4 
 

 
Privacy Statement 
 
All information provided will be treated in accordance with the Data 
Protection Act 1998. We will use the results of this consultation to help 
shape the 2018-19 Council Tax Reduction Scheme for Sefton for non- 
pensioner claimants. This feedback does not ask for personal contact 
details, if these are given by participants, we will only pass personal 
details to other Council departments or other Public Service 
organisations with your explicit consent. It may also be shared for the 
purposes of preventing fraud, misuse of public funds and any legal or 
statutory requirements, such as Safeguarding children and adults. 
 

Option 1 No Change 

 
We could keep the 2017/18 scheme without change for another 12 
months. This means that the proposed technical adjustments to the 
scheme to bring it in line with the prescribed scheme for 
Pensioners and Housing Benefit will not be made.  
  

Commentary The effect of this is that beneficial changes will not 
be taken into account but some claimants will 
receive more support.   

Additional 
Information 
 

The benefits of the Council doing this are: 

 A few claimants will receive a higher level of 
discount.  

 
The drawbacks of doing this  

 The Council will not achieve administrative 
savings. 

 Claimants will receive a new Council Tax bill 
every time there is a change in their 
circumstance. 

 Some claimants will receive a lower level of 
discount. 

 

Option 1 - Do you agree or disagree with keeping the scheme as it 
is? 

Agree 
strongly  

Agree Not Sure  Disagree Strongly 
disagree 

     

 

Page 22

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6a  
 

5 
 

The following 6 options are the proposed technical adjustments to the 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme assessment criteria for 2018/19:- 
 

Option 2  Apply a fixed income period to avoid multiple changes 
in circumstances. 

 
The roll out of Universal Credit (UC) is now a particular key factor that 
needs to be taken into account when looking at the CTR Scheme for 
2018/19.   The monthly UC payment some people get may alter as they 
earn more, or less, money from working. At the moment, these changes 
in payment could lead to changes to the amount of CTR and this could 
lead to more work for the Council and this costs more money to 
administer.  
 

Commentary This option will allow the Council to set 
‘assessment periods’ during which any changes in 
UC entitlement will not be actioned.  
 
Traditionally fixed periods of this sort have been 6 
months (previously used within Family Credit).  
 
The assessment period will only relate to a 
claimant’s earned income and the UC award. 
 
If there is a change in the claimant’s household or 
capital, for example someone joins or leaves, or 
there is a change in the level of savings or 
investments, the claim would be reassessed.   
 
The fixed period approach cannot be made to the 
pension age CTR scheme which is prescribed by 
Central Government. 
 

Additional 
Information 

Fixed Period Assessments 
This option will enable the Council to calculate or 
recalculate a person’s entitlement to Council Tax 
Reduction every 6 months. Currently, every 
change to a person’s income or capital will 
potentially generate a change in their Council Tax 
Reduction leading to changes in their Council Tax 
instalments.  
 
By fixing the assessment period, this will avoid 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6a  
 

6 
 

multiple changes, be less confusing, avoid the 
constant recalculations of Council Tax instalments 
and will aid administration. 
 
The benefit of this is: 

 It is a clear and simple change to the current 
scheme; 

 It is administratively simple for the Council and 
the claimant and will potentially make some 
administrative savings for the Council; and 

 It may benefit some claimants as changes that 
may decrease their Council Tax Reduction, 
such as more earnings, would not be taken into 
account until their new assessment period. 
 

The drawbacks of doing this are: 
Some people may not benefit as changes that 
may increase their Council Tax Reduction, for 
example their earnings reduced, would not be 
taken into account until their new assessment 
period. However, if this happens the Council will 
consider the effect of any financial hardship 
caused to a claimant and provide alternative 
financial support through its discretionary 
hardship fund where applicable.  

 

Option 2 - Do you agree or disagree with applying a fixed income 
period to avoid multiple changes in circumstances? 

Agree 
strongly  

Agree Not Sure  Disagree Strongly 
disagree 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6a  
 

7 
 

Option 3 Apply a Minimum Income Level for the Self Employed 
in line with the Universal Credit approach 

 

Commentary Universal Credit includes a 'Minimum Income Floor' 
(MIF) if you are gainfully self-employed, and your 
business has been running for more than 12 
months.  
 
The MIF is an assumed level of earnings. This is 
based on what an employed person would be 
expected to receive in similar circumstances. 
 
If the income of the self-employed claimant does 
not reach the MIF, then the MIF is used as their 
income. It is normally based on 35hrs x National 
Minimum Wage / National Living Wage (as 
appropriate). Exceptions to MIF include where: 

 There are caring responsibilities; 

 Disablement; or 

 Where the claimant also undertakes 
employment as an employed earner. 
 

Additional 
Information 

Using a set income for self-employed earners 
after 1 year’s self-employment  
 
In order to align Council Tax Reduction with 
Universal Credit, the Council proposes to use a 
minimum level of income for those who are self-
employed. This would be in line with the National 
Living Wage (or National Minimum Wage if you 
are under 25) for 35 hours worked per week. Any 
income above this amount would be taken into 
account based on the actual amount earned. The 
income would not apply for a designated start-up 
period of one year from the start of the business.  
 
The benefits of this are: 

 The treatment of income for self-employed 
applicants for Council Tax Reduction will be 
brought broadly into line with Universal 
Credit; 

 There will also be a saving in administration 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6a  
 

8 
 

costs for the Council as the number of 
assessments will be reduced as a result of 
this change. 

 
The drawback of this is: 

 Where a working age applicant is self-
employed and continues to run a business 
where their income is below the minimum 
living wage level, the Council will assume 
they earn at least the minimum level (based 
on a 35-hour week, regardless of the hours 
they work). 

 

 

Option 3 – Do you agree with the application of a Minimum Income 
Floor for Self Employed cases in line with the Universal Credit 
approach? 

Agree 
strongly  

Agree Not Sure  Disagree Strongly 
disagree 

     

 

 

Option 4 Reduce the period for which a person can be absent 
from Great Britain and still receive Council Tax 
Reduction.  

 

Commentary Housing Benefit (working age and pension age) 
and CTR (pension age) rules have been amended 
so that temporary absence from Great Britain will 
end entitlement to either benefit or reduction if it is 
more than 4 weeks as the general rule.  
 

Additional 
Information 

The Housing Benefit rules were changed in 2016 
and CTR (pension age) rules were changed from 
April 2017.  
 
This change will bring the working age CTR 
scheme into line with the other benefits/ reduction. 
This will be effective from 1st April 2018 and 
cannot be backdated. 
 

Page 26

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6a  
 

9 
 

 
The benefits of doing this are: 

 The treatment of temporary absence will be 
brought into line with Housing Benefit; 

 There are exceptions for certain groups. For 
these groups the absences from Great Britain 
can be extended up to 8 weeks in the event of 
the death of a close relative, or up to 26 weeks 
in some cases, for example member of  armed 
forces and mariners; hospitalisation; persons 
who have left home through fear of violence. 

 
The drawback of this is: 

 If a person is absent from Great Britain for a 
period which is likely to exceed 4 weeks, their 
Council Tax Reduction will cease from when 
they leave the country. They will need to re-
apply on return 

 

 

 

Option 4 – Do you agree or disagree with amending the Temporary 
Absence rules for working age CTR in line with changes made to 
Housing Benefit and Council Tax Reduction for Pension Age cases 

Agree 
strongly  

Agree Not Sure  Disagree Strongly 
disagree 

     

 

 

 

Option 5 Amend CTR to disregard Bereavement Support 
payments in line with changes to Housing Benefit. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6a  
 

10 
 

From 6 April 2017 the Government made changes to the bereavement 
benefits that people can get. This replaced and simplified existing types 
of bereavement support and extends eligibility to those under the age of 
45. Nothing will change for those CTR claimants who are already 
receiving bereavement benefits, or for anyone making a claim for 
bereavement benefits related to the death of a spouse or civil partner 
which occurs on or before 5 April 2017 as we will continue to include 
these payments when assessing entitlement to CTR. Unlike the current 
bereavement benefits, which can be paid for as long as the applicant 
satisfies the conditions for entitlement, Bereavement Support Payment is 
only payable for a maximum period of up to 18 months from the date the 
spouse or civil partner died 

 

Commentary A minor amendment which would allow the Council 
Tax Reduction scheme for working age claimants 
to disregard the new Bereavement Support 
payment. This will replicate the changes in Housing 
Benefit which took effect from April 2017. 
 
Failure to make the change would mean that any 
payment received would be taken into account as 
income within the CTR scheme. 

Additional 
Information 

The benefit of this is: 

 It brings the working age Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme in line with Housing Benefit 
changes made by Central Government; 

 It allows a claimant to keep income from this 
payment without affecting their CTR 
entitlement  

The drawbacks of doing this: 

 It is expected that the additional cost to the 
Council of this proposal will be low.   

 
  

 

Option 5 – Do you agree with amending CTR to disregard 
Bereavement Support payments in line with changes to Housing 
Benefit 

Agree 
strongly  

Agree Not Sure  Disagree Strongly 
disagree 

     
 
 

Page 28

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6a  
 

11 
 

Option 6 Remove the element of a Work Related Activity 
Component in the CTR calculation for new 
Employment and Support Allowance applicants from 
1st April 2018 to bring it in line with Housing Benefit 
rules.  

 

 

Commentary If someone claiming Employment and Support 
Allowance (ESA) has been placed in the work 
related activity group it means that they have been 
assessed by the Department of Work and 
Pensions (DWP) as unable to work at the moment 
but able to attend work focused activities to help 
them to find employment in the future.   
 
Being placed in this group meant they used to 
receive a higher amount of benefit than someone 
claiming Job Seeker’s Allowance.   
 
From 3 April 2017 the Government reduced the 
payment of ESA to this group to bring it in line with 
people claiming Job Seeker’s Allowance. On top of 
this the living needs allowance (known as the 
applicable amount) used for assessing entitlement 
to Housing Benefit was also cut by the Government 
to the same level.  
 
By applying this rule to the Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme it would mean that anyone in the ESA 
Work Related Activity Group who is in receipt of 
additional income as well as the ESA payment will 
see a cut in the amount of Council Tax Reduction 
they receive from 1 April 2018 onwards. However, 
claimants whose only income is the basic ESA 
payment will not see any change to the amount of 
Council Tax Reduction they receive.   
 
We anticipate only a very small number of 
claimants will be affected by this rule and the 
amount they lose will be less than £6 per week 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6a  
 

12 
 

Additional 
Information 

The benefits of the Council doing this are: 

 The treatment of ESA will be brought into line 
with Housing Benefit 

 It avoids additional costs to the Council Tax 
Reduction scheme. 

 Persons receiving ESA will not experience any 
reduction in Council Tax Reduction. 

 
The drawbacks: Some new CTRS claimants will 
receive a lower level of discount, but the likely 
number of claimants affected is expected to be 
very low following the roll out of Universal Credit. 

However, if this happens the Council will consider 
the effect of any financial hardship caused to a 
claimant and provide alternative financial support 
through its discretionary hardship fund where 
applicable. 
 

 

Option 6 – Do you agree with amending CTR to not grant ESA 
Work Related Activity Component for all new ESA claims in line 
with the changes to Housing Benefit. 

Agree 
strongly  

Agree Not Sure  Disagree Strongly 
disagree 

     

 

Option 7 Fully disregard Payments awarded from the We Love 
Manchester Emergency Fund and London 
Emergencies Trust when calculating CTR entitlement. 

 
 

Commentary On 20 June 2017 the Government issued guidance 
to Local Authorities on the treatment for the 
purposes of local Council Tax Reduction schemes 
of payments made from the charitable fund which 
has been established to provide financial 
assistance to victims and relatives affected by the 
attacks that occurred in Manchester on 22 May and 
in London of 22 March and 3 June. 
    
Local Authorities have been encouraged by the 
Government to consider using their discretionary 

Page 30

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6a  
 

13 
 

powers to disregard fully payments awarded from 
both funds to those injured or bereaved as a result 
of these incidents when assessing eligibility or their 
Council Tax Reduction schemes. 
 
We think that if people who live in Sefton receive 
money from these funds they should not lose any 
of their Council Tax Reduction. 
 

Additional 
Information 

The benefits of the Council doing this are: 

 Persons receiving payments awarded from 
both funds to those injured or bereaved will not 
experience any reduction in Council Tax 
Reduction. 

 It brings the working age Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme in line with Housing Benefit 
changes made by Central Government; and 
the prescribed Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
for pension age claimants   

 
The drawbacks of doing this are: relatively small  
additional cost for the Council.  

 

 

Option 7 – Do you agree or disagree that people who get a 
payment from the We Love Manchester Emergency Fund and 
London Emergencies Trust should not lose any of their Council 
Tax Reduction. 

Agree 
strongly  

Agree Not Sure  Disagree Strongly 
disagree 

     

 

How will these changes impact on you?  
Please tick which applies to you 
 
To what extent, if at all, would 
these changes impact you? 

Will impact 
me a lot 

Will impact 
me a little  

Will not 
impact me  

I don’t 
know 

 
1. Keep the 2017/18 CTR 
scheme without change for 
another 12 months. 
 

    

 
2. Apply a fixed income period to 

    

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6a  
 

14 
 

avoid multiple changes in 
circumstances. 
 

 
3. Apply a Minimum Income Level 
for the Self Employed in line with 
the Universal Credit approach. 
 

    

 
4. Reduce the period for which a 
person can be absent from Great 
Britain and still receive Council 
Tax Reduction. 
 

    

 
5. Amend CTR to disregard 
Bereavement Support payments 
in line with changes to Housing 
Benefit. 
 

    

 
6. Remove the element of a Work 
Related Activity Component in the 
CTR calculation for new 
Employment and Support 
Allowance applicants from 1st 
April 2018 to bring the CTR 
scheme in line with Housing 
Benefit rules. 
 

    

7. Fully disregard Payments from 
the We Love Manchester 
Emergency Fund and London 
Emergencies Trust when 
calculating CTR entitlement. 

    

 
Any other comments? 
 
Please use this box if you want to tell us more  
For example, if you feel that our proposed changes will affect any 
particularly individuals or groups more than others and if so, how do you 
think we may address these? 

 
 

Page 32

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6a  
 

15 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
EQUALITY QUESTIONS  - JV to insert  
 
 
Please return your completed form to:- 
 
Sefton Council,  
Corporate Finance & ICT, Partnership Team,  
Magdalen House,  
Trinity Road,  
Bootle L20 3NJ  
 
Counciltax.consultation@sefton.gov.uk 
 
 

Contact details 
 
If you need help to complete the online questionnaire please contact us:- 
 
0345 140 0845* - Monday – Friday, 8.00 a.m. – 6.00 p.m. 
 
*Calls cost 2p per minute plus your phone company's access 
charge 
 
Or  
 
Visit Bootle One Stop Shop, 324 Stanley Road, Bootle, L20 3ET, or 
Southport One Stop Shop, Cambridge Arcade, Southport, PR8 1DA.  
The One Stop Shops are open Monday – Friday, 9.00 a.m. – 5.00 p.m. 
 

What we will do with your feedback 
 
The information you provide will be treated confidentially and used solely 
by Sefton Council.  When the consultation period has ended, your views 
and the information provided will be analysed and form part of a report to 
Sefton’s Council to make a decision on the Council Tax Reduction 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Counciltax.consultation@sefton.gov.uk


Agenda Item 6a  
 

16 
 

Scheme for 2018/19.  The Council will make its decision on 28th January 
2018. 
 
Thank you for giving us your views 

Page 34

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6b 
 

Interim Equality Impact Assessment:  
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The Equality Act 2010 outlines how public bodies must have due regard to: 
 

1. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under this act 

2. Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 

3. Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
 

2.0 Protected Characteristics 
 
2.1 Equality Act 2010 is clear that there are particular characteristics that are intrinsic 
to an individual against which it would be easy to discriminate. Section 149 (the 
Public Sector Equality Duty) lists the characteristics known as ‘protected 
characteristics’ against which we have to test for discrimination. These 
characteristics are gender, race/ethnicity, religion and belief, sexual orientation, age, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity and disability. 
 
 

3.0 Identifying Impacts across protected characteristics 
 
Through reviewing your proposal, identify if and how the protected groups below 
may be impacted and identify any mitigating actions regarding the proposed changes 
but also as part of the consultation and engagement activity. 

 

Protected 
characteristic 

Recommendations/mitigating actions  

Gender 
 
 

The consultation process is open to everyone in our community 
and will not be discriminatory against any identified group allowing 
all people to have their say in the design of the scheme.   

Age 
 
 

The proposed changes do not affect pensioner claimants.  
Although we are consulting on changes to working age scheme, 
all age groups can take part in the consultation and engagement 
activity. Proposed changes to the treatment of Bereavement 
Support will extend additional CTR support to those under the age 
of 45.  

Disability 
 
 

The self- employed will be excepted from the minimum income 
floor if they have caring responsibilities. Equalities data will be 
collected throughout the consultation and engagement process 
and will be used when analysing data to identify any impact on 
disabled service users.  Information will be available in accessible 
format, including easy read, audio and telephone contact.   Our 
website has Browse Aloud. Most People's Network computers in 
our libraries have Supernova software installed and each library 
provides a large-key, coloured keyboard with a roller-ball mouse. 
Each branch of library has another keyboard with large print 

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



Agenda Item 6b 
 

black-on-yellow stickers attached. 

Race/Ethnicity  
 

Residents whose first language is not English will be informed via 
the website of the significance of the consultation documents. Our 
website can be translated into a number of different languages 
using Google translate or Intertran. Changes to the temporary 
absence rule may impact those who still retain connections in 
countries outside of the UK. 

Religion or 
belief  

We do not anticipate the proposals will have any effect or impact 
on anyone with any form of religion or beliefs. The following is an 
excerpt from the Government’s Equality Impact Assessment 
regarding the change in the temporary absence rule -“that new 
legislation will apply to all customers equally and so will not affect 
any customers differently because of their race/ethnicity. 
However, due to the ethnicity profile of Housing Benefit claimants, 
there may be an impact on the proportion of Black / Black British 
ethnicities and a lower proportion of white people are in the 
affected group. However, although we don’t have data of those 
that would be directly affected through travelling abroad for more 
than 4 weeks, of those that choose to do so, it may be that as 
around 20% of visits between 28 and 90 days are to an Asian 
country potentially the Asian ethnicity could be more affected by 
the rule change.  This could also mean that this is reflected in a 
disproportionate impact on certain religious groups, for example 
Muslims, Sikhs and Hindus. It is the Department’s view that the 
allowance of a 4 week absence is reasonable and should allow 
sufficient time, for example, for pilgrimages or sharing religious 
festivals with family members abroad, without claimants having to 
reclaim Housing Benefit on their return from abroad” 
https://www.gov.uk/.../equality-assessment-ssac-hb-
tempabsence-feb-2016.pdf 
There is likely to be very few occurrences in Sefton of extended 
absence resulting in customers having to reclaim when they 
return. 

Sexual 
Orientation 

The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 
discriminatory against any identified group. 

Gender 
Reassignment  

The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 
discriminatory against any identified group. 

Pregnancy and 
maternity  

The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 
discriminatory against any identified group. 

 
 
To protect the most vulnerable, or those adversely affected by changes, Sefton 
Council has maintains a Hardship Fund to act as a safety net. 
 
From April 2018, the effects of the changes to the scheme will need to be carefully 
monitored and any negative effects minimised. 
 
Particular attention will be paid to any customers that are affected by more than one 
change. 
 

Page 36

Agenda Item 6

https://www.gov.uk/.../equality-assessment-ssac-hb-tempabsence-feb-2016.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/.../equality-assessment-ssac-hb-tempabsence-feb-2016.pdf


Agenda Item 6b 
 

All  customers affected by the changes will receive explanations, offers of advice and 
sign posting towards further assistance as soon as is practical 
 
The Council’s on-line information will also be amended to reflect the general issues 
identified.  

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Our plans to change the Council Tax Reduction 

Scheme 2018/19 

 

  

Please tell us what you think before 3 November 2017 

 

3 NOV 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiO9Iugrb3VAhXFPBoKHfgBDSoQjRwIBw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.rla.org.uk%2Flocal-authority-network%2Fredirect.shtml%3Fsefton-council&psig=AFQjCNGTnvF9Tu26eZ1CBWtoNxcFF


CONTENTS PAGE 

                                      Council Tax Reduction  

                                 

 

                        

 

         

 

                                 

 

                                      

 

                                  

                                      

 

About You 

7 Options 

Why we need to change 

What will happen to the  

Information you give 

Thank You 

The Council Tax Reduction 

Scheme 

Page 40

Agenda Item 6

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwimtYvs5Y3WAhUEthQKHSprCukQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fthirdforcenews.org.uk%2Ftfn-news%2Fadvice-group-backs-scrapping-council-tax&psig=AFQjCNG1xCiU69LzTOnb28544qfwUD


Council Tax Reduction 

  

We are planning to make changes in the 

way we help working age people on low 

income to pay their council tax. 

  

Council Tax Reduction is the name of our 

scheme to reduce council tax for people 

on low income. 

  

This document explains: 

 Why we need to change 

 The options for change 

 What will happen to the information 

you tell us 

  

There is no change to the national council 

tax reduction scheme for people of  

pension age 

  

We want to know what you think? 

 Please read through this document and 

answer the questions that start on page 

XX 

 

 
 

 Page 41

Agenda Item 6

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwimtYvs5Y3WAhUEthQKHSprCukQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fthirdforcenews.org.uk%2Ftfn-news%2Fadvice-group-backs-scrapping-council-tax&psig=AFQjCNG1xCiU69LzTOnb28544qfwUD


Our current scheme 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our current Scheme helps people who live 
in Sefton with low incomes pay their Council 
Tax provided they have savings : 
 
 of less than £16,000 (pension age)  
 
 

 

 
 
 
 or £6,000 (non-pensioners).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
In June 2017, there were 26,883 people 
getting Council Tax Reduction in Sefton 
(12,447 pensioner age and 14,436 working 
age). 

£16,000 

 

£6,000 

 

Page 42

Agenda Item 6



Why we need to change 

  

Sefton Council is getting a lot less money 

from the Government towards the important 

services it provides. 

 

 

  

Local Councillors have to find ways to save 

money. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

We want to make it easier to manage the 

scheme and this would help us save money 

from the administration costs of the 

scheme. 

  

Universal Credit is a monthly payment for 
people who are on low income or are out of 
work. 

It is something that has been introduced by 

the Government.  It is being rolled out in 

stages across the UK and is replacing other 

benefits.   

We want to make sure that we can join up 

Universal Credit with the Council Tax  

Reduction Scheme. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

£  

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 6

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjlu4Gh8o3WAhUD6xQKHb9mAe4QjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.gatewayhousing.org.uk%2Fnews%2Fare-you-affected-by-universal-credit-1219%2F&psig=AFQjCNHLnxGBlk3_24GMMHmCOQ


Case studies 

 

What could the changes mean for  
different groups of people affected by the 
proposals? 
We do not know how these changes will  
affect everyone.  We have put information  
together to show some ways how the options 
might affect some people. 

 

Page 44

Agenda Item 6



 

NO CHANGE 

We could keep the scheme without change, for  

another 12 months.  

  

This would not save money and may mean that we 

have to raise council tax for everyone, or cut services 

more. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Do you agree or disagree with keeping the scheme as 

it is? 

 

 

 

Option 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

Agree 

Strongly 

 

 

Agree 

 

Not sure 

 

Disagree 

 

Strongly 

disagree 

 

 

 

 

    

Page 45

Agenda Item 6

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjT-riB-Y3WAhWGSBQKHZ43BvEQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fcliparting.com%2Ffree-smiley-face-clip-art-1502%2F&psig=AFQjCNH6rvZh3jfG07tvY-kn9YpCfzfBrg&ust=1504697327276080
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwj6ubea-Y3WAhUEwxQKHbq4B-UQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.clipartpanda.com%2Fcategories%2Fsmiley-face-clipart-black-and-white&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjIy9H--Y3WAhXDyRoKHebsD6YQjRwIBw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pinterest.com%2Fwampiisawesome%2Fsmiley-face%2F&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg&ust=1504697512254
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjCx7m4-o3WAhWG1hQKHcYpBgUQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fclipartix.com%2Fsad-face-clip-art-image-20469%2F&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg&ust=1504697512254986


 Universal Credit is a monthly payment for 
people who are on low income or are out of 
work. 

It’s being rolled out in stages across the UK 

and is replacing other benefits.   

 

The Universal Credit payment  that some 

people get may change as they earn more, 

or less, money from working. 

 

At the moment, these changes in payment 

could lead to changes to the amount of 

Council Tax Reduction and this could mean 

more work for the Council and that costs 

more money to make the changes. 

 

 

We would like to have a fixed assessment 

period of 6 months for working age people 

only. This will mean that we will not make 

any changes to the income we use to work 

out the amount of CTR you can get during 

this time. 

 

 

 

Some people may benefit from this as 

changes that may decrease Council Tax  

Reduction will not be looked at until the new 

assessment period. (at the end of 6 months) 

Option 2 — Having a fixed period for  

assessments 

 

£ 

£ 

 

 

 6 

Page 46

Agenda Item 6

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwj3u_TKlI7WAhVBoBQKHYXlDeoQjRwIBw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pinterest.co.uk%2Fexplore%2Fengland-tattoo%2F&psig=AFQjCNH8QLhb4kFtfPJPXk54eMH0ESrx4Q&ust=150470486336455
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjlu4Gh8o3WAhUD6xQKHb9mAe4QjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.gatewayhousing.org.uk%2Fnews%2Fare-you-affected-by-universal-credit-1219%2F&psig=AFQjCNHLnxGBlk3_24GMMHmCOQ
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiO9Iugrb3VAhXFPBoKHfgBDSoQjRwIBw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.rla.org.uk%2Flocal-authority-network%2Fredirect.shtml%3Fsefton-council&psig=AFQjCNGTnvF9Tu26eZ1CBWtoNxcFF


 Some people may not benefit from this as  

changes may increase Council Tax  

Reduction and this would not be looked at until 

the new assessment period (at the end of 6 

months). 

 This would only be for people who earn money 

from working and who get Universal Credit 

(remove this section from here and place after 

item 3 “we would like to have a fixed assessment 

 If there is a change in the person’s household or 

capital, for example someone joins or leaves, or 

there is a change in the level of savings or  

investments, the claim would be reassessed.   

  

We will not be able to apply a fixed period to the 

pension age scheme. 

 

Do you agree or disagree with having a fixed  

assessment period of six months? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

Agree 

Strongly 

 

Agree Not sure Disagree Strongly 

disagree 

 

 

 

    

Page 47

Agenda Item 6

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjT-riB-Y3WAhWGSBQKHZ43BvEQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fcliparting.com%2Ffree-smiley-face-clip-art-1502%2F&psig=AFQjCNH6rvZh3jfG07tvY-kn9YpCfzfBrg&ust=1504697327276080
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjIy9H--Y3WAhXDyRoKHebsD6YQjRwIBw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pinterest.com%2Fwampiisawesome%2Fsmiley-face%2F&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg&ust=1504697512254
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwj6ubea-Y3WAhUEwxQKHbq4B-UQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.clipartpanda.com%2Fcategories%2Fsmiley-face-clipart-black-and-white&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjCx7m4-o3WAhWG1hQKHcYpBgUQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fclipartix.com%2Fsad-face-clip-art-image-20469%2F&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg&ust=1504697512254986


 Lots of people run their own businesses.  

Some businesses earn lots of money and 

others not as much money. 

 

We would like to use a set income for people 

who are self-employed after the person has 

been in business for 12 months. 

 

 This would be the same as the National  

Living Wage of £7.50 per hour (or National 

Minimum Wage if you are under 25 years 

old), for 35 hours worked per week.  The  

National Minimum Wage depends on your 

age. 

 

 

This will not apply where: 

 There are caring responsibilities 

 People are disabled 

 Where the business owner also works 

for someone else. 

 This will help the Council save money as 

there will be less assessments 

 If a person runs their business and they earn 

below the minimum level, the Council will 

think (change to assume) that they earn the 

minimum level of 35 hours, no matter how 

many hours they work. 

Option 3 - Having a minimum income level for 

people who are self employed (people who run 

their own businesses) in line with the Universal 

Credit approach. 

 

£ 
12 

 

 

£ 

Page 48

Agenda Item 6

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiO9Iugrb3VAhXFPBoKHfgBDSoQjRwIBw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.rla.org.uk%2Flocal-authority-network%2Fredirect.shtml%3Fsefton-council&psig=AFQjCNGTnvF9Tu26eZ1CBWtoNxcFF


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Do you agree or disagree with  having a minimum  

income level for people who are self employed (who 

run their own business)? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

 

Agree 

Strongly 

 

 

Agree 

 

Not sure 

 

Disagree 

 

Strongly 

disagree 

 

 

 

 

    

Option 4— Changing the Rules about claiming 

Council Tax Reduction if the person is not living 

in Great Britain during a temporary absence. 

 At the moment people who get Housing  

Benefit (people of working age and  

pensioners) and pensioners who get a  

reduction in Council Tax are not able to claim for 

the benefit if they are not living (change to absent 

from or out of ) Great Britain  for more than 4 

weeks. 

  

We would like to also make it the same for people 

who are working age who claim a Council Tax  

Reduction 

Page 49

Agenda Item 6

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjT-riB-Y3WAhWGSBQKHZ43BvEQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fcliparting.com%2Ffree-smiley-face-clip-art-1502%2F&psig=AFQjCNH6rvZh3jfG07tvY-kn9YpCfzfBrg&ust=1504697327276080
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjIy9H--Y3WAhXDyRoKHebsD6YQjRwIBw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pinterest.com%2Fwampiisawesome%2Fsmiley-face%2F&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg&ust=1504697512254
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwj6ubea-Y3WAhUEwxQKHbq4B-UQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.clipartpanda.com%2Fcategories%2Fsmiley-face-clipart-black-and-white&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjCx7m4-o3WAhWG1hQKHcYpBgUQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fclipartix.com%2Fsad-face-clip-art-image-20469%2F&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg&ust=1504697512254986


 

This does not apply for some people.  For these  

groups the absences from Great Britain can be  

extended up to 8 weeks, for example death of a  

close relative, or 26 weeks in some cases, for  

example  

 

 member of  armed forces and Mariners 

 being in hospital 

 persons who have left home through fear of  

       violence. 

 

 If a person is not in Great Britain for more than 4 

weeks, their Council Tax reduction will stop from 

the date they leave the country.  They will need to 

apply again when they get back. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Do you agree or disagree with making the  

temporary absence rules of 4 weeks the same for 

people who get  Council tax Reduction? 

 

  

 

 

 

Agree 

Strongly 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agree 

 

 

 

 

Not sure 

 

 

 

 

Disagree 

 

 

 

 

Strongly 

disagree 

 

 

 

    

4 

weeks 

     £ 

Page 50

Agenda Item 6

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjT-riB-Y3WAhWGSBQKHZ43BvEQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fcliparting.com%2Ffree-smiley-face-clip-art-1502%2F&psig=AFQjCNH6rvZh3jfG07tvY-kn9YpCfzfBrg&ust=1504697327276080
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjIy9H--Y3WAhXDyRoKHebsD6YQjRwIBw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pinterest.com%2Fwampiisawesome%2Fsmiley-face%2F&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg&ust=1504697512254
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwj6ubea-Y3WAhUEwxQKHbq4B-UQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.clipartpanda.com%2Fcategories%2Fsmiley-face-clipart-black-and-white&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjCx7m4-o3WAhWG1hQKHcYpBgUQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fclipartix.com%2Fsad-face-clip-art-image-20469%2F&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg&ust=1504697512254986
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwj3u_TKlI7WAhVBoBQKHYXlDeoQjRwIBw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pinterest.co.uk%2Fexplore%2Fengland-tattoo%2F&psig=AFQjCNH8QLhb4kFtfPJPXk54eMH0ESrx4Q&ust=150470486336455


Option 5 - To change the Council Tax reduction 

so that it doesn’t include any Bereavement  

Support payments (Bereavement support is 

money that people get if their husband or wife or 

civil partner dies) 

 

In April 2017, the Government made changes 

to the bereavement benefits that people can 

get if they are getting housing benefit. 

 

 

 

This made claiming the benefit easier to do 

and people aged less than 45 years can now 

get help. 

Nothing will change for people who (get the 

Bereavement Benefit now -Remove ) were be-

reaved on or before 5 April 2017.  

 

 

The new Bereavement Support payment can 

only be claimed for 18 months from the date 

the husband or wife or civil partner died. 

 

 We would like to change the Council Tax  

Reduction Scheme so that it is the same as 

the Housing Benefit  rules from April 2017. 

 This would mean that the money from the  

bereavement payment  would not affect the 

council tax reduction that a person receives. 

18 

APRIL 

Page 51

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Do you agree or disagree with making the  

Bereavement Support payment the same for  

people who get  Council Tax Reduction? 

  

 

 

    

Agree 

Strongly 

 

Agree Not sure Disagree Strongly 

disagree 

 

 

 

    

Option 6 - To change the Council Tax reduction so 

that it does not include The Employment and  

Support Allowance (often shortened to ESA) Work 

Related Activity component for all new people claim-

 

Employment and Support Allowance is a  

benefit for people who find it hard to get a job 

because: 

 They have a disability 

 They have a problem with their health and  

expect to have this problem for a long time. 

 

If someone who gets ESA has been placed in 

the Work Related Activity Group it means that 

they have been assessed as unable to work 

but can attend activities to help them get ready 

for work in the future. 
Page 52

Agenda Item 6

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjT-riB-Y3WAhWGSBQKHZ43BvEQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fcliparting.com%2Ffree-smiley-face-clip-art-1502%2F&psig=AFQjCNH6rvZh3jfG07tvY-kn9YpCfzfBrg&ust=1504697327276080
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjIy9H--Y3WAhXDyRoKHebsD6YQjRwIBw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pinterest.com%2Fwampiisawesome%2Fsmiley-face%2F&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg&ust=1504697512254
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwj6ubea-Y3WAhUEwxQKHbq4B-UQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.clipartpanda.com%2Fcategories%2Fsmiley-face-clipart-black-and-white&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjCx7m4-o3WAhWG1hQKHcYpBgUQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fclipartix.com%2Fsad-face-clip-art-image-20469%2F&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg&ust=1504697512254986


 From April 2017, people who start claiming the 

Employment and Support Allowance who are 

not in the Work Related Activity group will not 

get the Work Related Activity Component 

(WRAC) of the benefit. 

 

The removal of the work related activity  

component  means that we have to change the 

Council Tax reduction.  This would happen 

from 1st April 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

People who get the Work Related Activity 

Component as part of their ESA ( remove ben-

efit now) will still get it. 

 

 

 

  

This will help Sefton Council to save money. 

  

Some new people who get a Council Tax  

Reduction will get a smaller discount 

1st APRIL 

£ 

Page 53

Agenda Item 6

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiO9Iugrb3VAhXFPBoKHfgBDSoQjRwIBw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.rla.org.uk%2Flocal-authority-network%2Fredirect.shtml%3Fsefton-council&psig=AFQjCNGTnvF9Tu26eZ1CBWtoNxcFF


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Do you agree or disagree with changing the  

Council Tax Reduction so  that people making  

new ESA claims do not get the Work Related  

Activity Component ? 

 

 

 

    

 

Agree 

Strongly 

 

Agree 

 

Not sure 

 

Disagree 

 

Strongly 

disagree 

 

 

 

    

Option 7 - Payments from the We Love Manchester 

Emergency Fund and London Emergencies Trust 

(These are funds that have been set up to support 

victims and families who were involved in the  

attacks that took place in Manchester on 22 May and 

London on 22 March and 3 June) 

 On the 20th June, the Government  

advised Local Council’s (including Sefton 

Council) how payments from the  

charitable funds should be looked at if  

people get a Council Tax Reduction. 

Page 54

Agenda Item 6

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjT-riB-Y3WAhWGSBQKHZ43BvEQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fcliparting.com%2Ffree-smiley-face-clip-art-1502%2F&psig=AFQjCNH6rvZh3jfG07tvY-kn9YpCfzfBrg&ust=1504697327276080
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjIy9H--Y3WAhXDyRoKHebsD6YQjRwIBw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pinterest.com%2Fwampiisawesome%2Fsmiley-face%2F&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg&ust=1504697512254
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwj6ubea-Y3WAhUEwxQKHbq4B-UQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.clipartpanda.com%2Fcategories%2Fsmiley-face-clipart-black-and-white&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjCx7m4-o3WAhWG1hQKHcYpBgUQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fclipartix.com%2Fsad-face-clip-art-image-20469%2F&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg&ust=1504697512254986
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjnnIb62pLWAhUGuhQKHX91BjAQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.planetware.com%2Flondon%2Fwestminster-eng-l-west.htm&psig=AFQjCNF_mGQSOp9HT1uPIySNaI_tCf6TuQ&ust=1504861178


 We think that if people who live in Sefton  

receive money from these funds, they should 

not  lose any of their Council Tax  

Reduction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Do you agree or disagree that people who get a 

payment from these funds should not lose any of 

their Council Tax Reduction? 

 

 

 

 

    

 

Agree 

Strongly 

 

Agree 

 

Not sure 

 

Disagree 

 

Strongly 

disagree 

 

 

 

    

Page 55

Agenda Item 6

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjT-riB-Y3WAhWGSBQKHZ43BvEQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fcliparting.com%2Ffree-smiley-face-clip-art-1502%2F&psig=AFQjCNH6rvZh3jfG07tvY-kn9YpCfzfBrg&ust=1504697327276080
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjIy9H--Y3WAhXDyRoKHebsD6YQjRwIBw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pinterest.com%2Fwampiisawesome%2Fsmiley-face%2F&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg&ust=1504697512254
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwj6ubea-Y3WAhUEwxQKHbq4B-UQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.clipartpanda.com%2Fcategories%2Fsmiley-face-clipart-black-and-white&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjCx7m4-o3WAhWG1hQKHcYpBgUQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fclipartix.com%2Fsad-face-clip-art-image-20469%2F&psig=AFQjCNGsSzWWmBW9T-cg8mQfXa7uwQVMfg&ust=1504697512254986
http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjf2qPe2pLWAhVJtxQKHSf1CSAQjRwIBw&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.investsefton.com%2Finvestment%2Fbusiness-locations%2F&psig=AFQjCNFDwJdBM4uZIykxq0fN4tol6_Hr5A&ust=150486113


Will these options affect you?  

Please  in the boxes below 

 

Will  

affect me 

a lot 

Will  

affect me 

a little 

Will not  

affect me 

Not 

 Sure 

 

 

No change to scheme     

Having a fixed period for  

assessments 

    

A minimum income level for 

people who run their own 

business 

    

Having a temporary absence 

period of 4 weeks 

    

Changing the Council Tax 

Reduction so it does not  

include bereavement Sup-

port payments 

    

Changing the Council Tax 

Reduction so that people 

making new Employment 

Support Allowance (ESA) 

claims do not get the Work 

Related Activity Component 

    

People getting payments 

from the funds not losing 

any Council Tax reduction 

    

Page 56

Agenda Item 6

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiV0MqO3tjVAhWDWxoKHQmQCd4QjRwIBw&url=https%3A%2F%2Fsimple.wiktionary.org%2Fwiki%2Ftick&psig=AFQjCNEJflhRmFCNshwj-_wPck5vFJTuSw&ust=1502869176127216


4. Please use this box if you want to tell us more  

Page 57

Agenda Item 6



 

Some Questions About You 

Filling in this form will help us make sure we 

are reaching everyone in Sefton. 
 

It will help us to make sure we are   meeting 

everyone’s needs and not leaving anyone out.  

All this information is  secret.  We just add up 

all the answers. 

The first part of my post code is __________________ 

I am 

 

 

 A Man     A Woman                                                                   

 

 

My age group is   

      

         18-29                  30-39                      40-49   

            50-59                 60-69                        70 +     

 

  Do you think of yourself as disabled? 

 

      Yes                                   No 

 

Page 58

Agenda Item 6



My disability is 

                         Learning  

                         Disability 

                    Mobility  

                     Related 

                  Mental Health                     Visual  

                    Impairment 

                    Hearing  

                    Impairment 

                     Limiting Long  

                     Term Illness 

Other  

 
 

  

 

 

 

White 

         British 

         English 

         Irish 

         Scottish 

         Welsh 

         Polish 

         Latvian 

         Gypsy or Traveller 

Other White Background 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

My ethnicity is 

Page 59

Agenda Item 6



Asian 

           Asian - Bangladeshi 

           Asian - Indian 

           Asian - Pakistani 

Other Asian Background 

Black 

            African 

            Caribbean 

Other Black Background 

Chinese 

         Chinese 

Other Chinese Background     

Mixed Ethnic Backgrounds 

         Asian and White 

         White and Black African 

         White and Black Caribbean 

Other mixed  

 

Any Other Please tell us here 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 60

Agenda Item 6



Religion 

        Buddhist        Christian 

        Hindu         Jewish 

        Muslim         Sikh 

        No religion           

        Other  

 

 

 

 

 

 

         

 

Relationships  

        Bisexual         Gay 

        Heterosexual         Lesbian 

        Other         Wish not                   

                  

                  

Do you live in the gender you were given 

at birth? 
 

 

Yes  No                   

Thank you for filling in this form. 

This information will not be able to    

tell us who you are. 

Page 61

Agenda Item 6



Thank you 

 

What we will do with what you tell us 

We will keep what you tell us a secret and will 

not pass your name and address to anybody 

else.   

We will use what you tell us to help plan the 

equipment service that you will have in the  

future and we will let you know what we decide 

to do. 

 

 

 

A report will go to a meeting with Councillors 

(people who make decisions) . 

 

Please return the questionnaire to: 

Sefton Council 

Corporate Finance & ICT, Partnership Team 

Magdalen House 

Trinity Road 

Bootle, 

L30 3NJ 

 

If you have any questions or need more  

information, please contact us at: 

 counciltax.consultation@sefton.gov.uk 

 

 0345 140 0845 (calls cost 2p per minute 

plus your phone company charges) 

Page 62

Agenda Item 6



 Agenda Item 7 

1 

 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: 22nd September 2017 
 
Title: Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity 

– Bootle Town Hall Heritage Complex  
 
Report of:  Nicky Owen, Regeneration Officer 
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To receive information with regard to the consultation plans being 

developed with regard to the Bootle Town Hall Heritage Complex. 
 
2. Background 
 
 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 

is to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
3. Bootle Town Hall Heritage Complex 
 

3.1 In October 2016 Sefton Council published the Bootle Town Centre 
Investment Framework, a high level strategic document.  Feedback 
gained from consultation events highlighted the Town Hall as a great 
regeneration opportunity with the desire for increased cultural activity 
a key theme. We are now looking at the potential to repurpose the 
Town Hall complex, whilst keeping the Town Hall civic functions, and 
see the creation of a new cultural and heritage facility in the former 
Bootle Free Library and Museum as an option to be explored.  

 
Transforming this historic building into the new home of arts and 
culture in the town, would be a major statement of the Council’s 
ambition for Bootle and provide a focal point for the cultural outreach 
work currently being undertaken.  
 
This refreshed physical space will be supported by a learning and 
skills infrastructure, reaching out to the local community and 
developing materials that can be used in local schools, adult 
education centres and beyond.  

The purpose of the consultation is to: 

 Get people’s views on the potential for a Heritage/Cultural Centre in 
Bootle Town Hall Heritage Complex 

 Find out what activity could be included in a Heritage Centre  

 Find out what topics people want to see covered by a Heritage Centre 

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



 Agenda Item 7 

2 

 

There is no consultation on service delivery in this project, and 
therefore individual service users will not be consulted. 

 
4.    The Consultation 
 
4.1            The following consultation is proposed:  

 Online Exhibition – web pages containing an invitation to consult, and 
links to eConsult 

 Personalised Invitations – local Councillors, local interest groups, 
specialist organisations  

 Pop-up heritage centre in Strand Shopping Centre during October 
half-term 

 Circulation of Print Document – stocks in central places e.g. Library, 
and available on demand. Printed response forms and link to eConsult 

 Information in local media 

 Information on Sefton website, Your Sefton website and tweeted 
through Sefton 
A range of communication materials will be used to publicise the 
consultation including: 

 Information to existing groups 

 Press releases 

 Twitter tweets 

 Flier 

 Information on websites 

 Information to Bootle Town Hall tour attendees 

 Pop-up Heritage Centre Strand Shopping Centre 

 Briefing sessions with Members 

The tweet and press release will be updated and reissued at various 
times over the consultation period.  There may be the potential for 
focus groups later on in the process but probably not at this early 
stage. 

5. Legal Department Comments 
  
 5.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 

contained in this report and has made suggestions that have been 
shared with the relevant Officer. 

 
  

Page 64

Agenda Item 7



 Agenda Item 7 

3 

 

6. Recommendations 
 
 6.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  
  a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the 

Bootle Town Hall Heritage Complex. 
 
  b) Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 

their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above 
consultation. 

  

Page 65

Agenda Item 7



 Agenda Item 7 

4 

 

 
 

 

Project Title: Bootle Town Hall Heritage Complex 

Is your project linked to: (please choose from the drop-down below) 

A new service - please attach a new Equalitiess Impact Assessment 

Lead officer: Nicky Owen Contact 
no  

0151 934 2691 

Designation Regeneration Officer E-mail Nicky.owen@sefton.gov.uk 

How does your consultation relate to the Council’s Core Purpose (please tick) 

 Protect the most vulnerable 

X Facilitate confident and resilient communities 

 Commission, broker and provide core services 

X Place – Leadership and Influencer 

X Drivers of change and reform 

X Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity 

 Greater income for social investment 

 Cleaner, Greener 

Which of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Priorities does your Consultation relate 
to (please tick) 

 
Ensure all children have a positive start in life  
 

 
Support people early to prevent and treat avoidable illnesses and reduce 
inequalities in health  
 

 
Support older people and those with long term conditions and disabilities to 
remain independent and in their own homes  

 
Promote positive mental health and wellbeing  
 

X 
Seek to address the wider social, environmental and economic issues that 
contribute to poor health and wellbeing  

 Build capacity and resilience to empower and strengthen communities 

Does this consultation relate to an item on the Forward Plan?  If so which one? 

Yes, Bootle Town Hall Heritage Complex 

Public Engagement & Consultation Panel 

PROJECT PROPOSAL 

Page 66

Agenda Item 7



 Agenda Item 7 

5 

 

Other partners involved (please state if internal or external to the Council) 

The Atkinson (internal) 

Port Academy Liverpool (external) 

 

(Planned) start date (Planned) end date: What is the allocated budget? 

02/10/17 22/12/17 There is no planned allocated budget at 
present.  Costs will be met through existing 
staff time and where there are additional 
costs the agreed project budget will be 
used. 

Background/Rationale 

 
In October 2016 Sefton Council published the Bootle Town Centre Investment Framework, 
a high level strategic document.  Feedback gained from consultation events highlighted the 
Town Hall as a great regeneration opportunity with the desire for increased cultural activity 
a key theme. We are now looking at the potential to repurpose the Town Hall complex, 
whilst keeping the Town Hall civic functions, and see the creation of a new cultural and 
heritage facility in the former Bootle Free Library and Museum as an option to be explored.  
 
Transforming this historic building into the new home of arts and culture in the town, would 
be a major statement of the Council’s ambition for Bootle and provide a focal point for the 
cultural outreach work currently being undertaken.  
 
This refreshed physical space will be supported by a learning and skills infrastructure, 
reaching out to the local community and developing materials that can be used in local 
schools, adult education centres and beyond.  
 
Some pre-consultation discussions have taken place with Members and key interest 
groups to agree some themes for wider consultation. 
 

Aims & Objectives 

The purpose of the consultation is to: 

 Get people views on the potential for a Heritage/Cultural  Centre in Bootle Town Hall 
Heritage Complex 

 Find out what activity could be included in a Heritage Centre  

 Find out what topics people want to see covered by a Heritage Centre 
The feedback from the consultation will be used to inform the next steps for the project. 

 

Target Audience 

 Members 

 Local interest groups 

Page 67

Agenda Item 7



 Agenda Item 7 

6 

 

 Local people 

 Local schools 

 Local community & voluntary groups 

 Specialist organisations 
 

Stakeholder Map 

High Influence 

 

Potential funders 

 

 

 

Cabinet Members  

Specialist organisations 

Ward members 

Low Influence 

 

 

Local schools 

Community & voluntary 

groups 

 

 

Local people 

Local interest groups 

 Low Interest High Interest 

 

Methodology (Please also include any details of any accessible methods) 

 Online Exhibition – web pages containing an invitation to consult, and links to 
eConsult 

 Personalised Invitations – local Councillors, local interest groups, specialist 
organisations, people who express an interest at the Town Hall Heritage Open Day  

 Pop-up heritage centre in Strand Shopping Centre during October half-term 

 Circulation of Print Document – stocks in central places e.g. Library, and available 
on demand. Printed response forms and link to eConsult 

 Information in local media 

 Information on Sefton website, Your Sefton website and tweeted through Sefton 
There may be the potential for focus groups later on in the process but probably not at this 
early stage. 

 

Communications Plan (If Council, please also contact Corporate Communications) 

A range of communication materials will be used to publicise the consultation including: 

 Information to existing groups 

 Press releases 

 Twitter tweets 

 Flier 

 Information on websites 

 Information for Bootle Town Hall tour visitors 

 Pop-up Heritage Centre Strand Shopping Centre 

Page 68

Agenda Item 7



 Agenda Item 7 

7 

 

 Briefing sessions with Members 

The tweet and press release will be updated and reissued at various times over the 
consultation period. 

Key Message Audience Method 

Invitation to Consult All stakeholders identified 
above 

Mainly on-line 

Through existing networks 

via Library etc. 

Proposals for Bootle Town 
Centre Heritage Centre 

All stakeholders identified 
above 

Full suite of consultation 
documentation 

Response Form All stakeholders identified 
above 

eConsult 

Paper-based form 
 

Potential barriers to involvement and action to overcome barriers 

There are a number of potential barriers that may stop people getting involved in the 
consultation on the Strategy.  These include: 

 Lack of awareness about the consultation process 

 No access to electronic versions of the proposal documentation  

 Inability to ask questions about the proposal documentation 
We will address these by: 

 Publicising the consultation process through as many outlets as possible, including 
through existing groups, press releases, social media and websites 

 Providing paper copies of the consultation materials in central locations, including 
Bootle Library for those people unable to access the documentation electronically 

 Provision of the pop-up Heritage Centre in the Strand.  This will act as a drop-in 
session for people to ask questions about the proposal 

Hard to reach groups will be targeted through information to specific groups, e.g. Sefton 
Young Advisors, People First. 

The venues for the Heritage Centre pop-up, and for paper copies of the consultation 
materials, will be fully accessible.   

 

How will you protect the confidentiality of participants?  

No individual details of participants will be released.  Responses recorded in the Report of 
Consultation will be anonymised unless specific approval is given to identify the author. 
Personal contributions in meetings will not be attributed. 

 

How and when do you intend to report or publish the findings? 

A Consultation and Evaluation Report for the consultation process will be taken to a future 

Page 69

Agenda Item 7



 Agenda Item 7 

8 

 

meeting of the Engagement & Consultation Panel. 

 

Level and type of patient/public engagement (place a tick in all that apply) 

Tick Level Description 

X Informing 
Giving people information about something (a limited 
opportunity for them to be involved) 

X Consulting 
Getting people’s views to help you develop/change your 
services/plans 

X 
Deciding 
together 

Making decisions using patients’ and public’s views 

 Acting together 
Local people will be involved in making decisions and reviewing 
your plans/services 

 
Supporting local 
initiatives 

Local people will have the opportunity to lead, develop and 
deliver activities independently 

Does your project include: 

 Yes/No If No please explain 

Questionnaire 
(Please attach .  The Panel will 
not be able to consider your 
proposal if it is not available in 
advance for them to consider) 

Yes  

Other materials  
(i.e. promotional materials) 

Yes  

A stakeholder map 
(a tool to help you identify your 
target audience – included in 
toolkit) 

Yes  

Reference to existing data or 
information that has already been 
completed  
(i.e. recent consultation/ research 
where results can be used to 
inform your consultation) 

yes Some pre-consultation discussions have 
taken place with Members and key interest 
groups.  

Any other information you would like to provide? 

Click here to enter text. 

Page 70

Agenda Item 7



 Agenda Item 7 

9 

 

 

 

 

If you require further information please contact either Jayne Vincent on 0151 934 3733 

 
 
Signature of Project Lead:    
Date: 5th September 2017 
 
Manager Approval:   
Date: 5th September 2017 
 
 

 
Please return this form electronically to:- 
 
Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk  
 
 
 

Page 71

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7a 

 
Bootle Town Centre Heritage and Cultural Facility 
 
In 2016 Sefton Council published the Bootle Town Centre Investment Framework.  This 
document presents a high level vision to bring forward regeneration and investment.  
The Investment Framework has been prepared at a time when local authorities are 
operating with significantly reduced budgets.  This underlines the importance of working 
in partnership with the private sector alongside the community and local business, to 
deliver improvements that are needed. 
 
Feedback gained from consultation for the Investment Framework expressed the desire 
to see more heritage and cultural activity within the Town Centre.  People were also 
keen to see the Town Hall complex of buildings regenerated, with more activity taking 
place there.  We are now looking at the potential to include a heritage and cultural facility 
within the Town Hall complex, whilst keeping the Town Hall civic functions.  
 
We are currently at the very early stages of this project and are looking to gain the views 
of local people, heritage and cultural groups and others about the proposals. 
 
We would be grateful if you could spend a few minutes completing this questionnaire. 
 
 
Do you agree with the idea of developing a heritage & cultural facility in Bootle Town 
Centre? 
Yes 
No 
 
Do you agree with the heritage & cultural facility being located in part of the Town Hall 
buildings complex? 
Yes 
No 
If no where do you think it should be located? 
 
Do you visit heritage/cultural attractions? 
Yes 
No 
If so, which ones? 
The Atkinson 
Liverpool World Museum 
Museum of Liverpool Life 
Local theatres 
Other (please specify) 
 
What do you think the focus of the heritage attraction In Bootle should be?  Previous 
discussions have suggested maritime history, the world wars and local people as areas 
to focus on.  Do you agree with these focus areas? 
Maritime History 
World Wars 
Local People   
Are there other areas that should be focused on?  If so, please specify. 
 
 

Page 73

Agenda Item 7



Agenda Item 7a 

 
Would you like to see some type of performance/event space incorporated Into the 
facility? 
Yes 
No 
If yes, what sort of events or performances do you think should take place in the facility?  
 
On-going funding would be required to enable any facility to stay open.  Would you be 
prepared to pay to use the facility? 
Yes 
No 
If yes, how much would you be prepared to pay? 
 
Many facilities of this type rely on volunteers to help on a day-to day basis.  Would you 
be willing to volunteer? 
Yes 
No 
If yes, which of the following areas would you be interested in? 
Education 
Retail 
ICT 
Fundraising 
Other (please specify) 
 
Are there other ways that you could support a project of this type? 
Fundraising 
Governance 
Other (please specify) 
 
If you are interested in finding out more about this proposal, or becoming more involved 
In the future please provide the following details: 
 
Name 
Email address and/or phone number 
 
Return address details. 
 
Standard equality questions. 
 
 
 

Page 74

Agenda Item 7



Agenda Item 7b 

Equality Impact Assessment: Bootle Town Hall Heritage Complex Consultation 
and Engagement June 2015 

 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The Equality Act 2010 outlines how public bodies must have due regard to: 
 

1. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under this act 

2. Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 

3. Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
 

2.0 Protected Characteristics 
 
2.1 Equality Act 2010 is clear that there are particular characteristics that are intrinsic 
to an individual against which it would be easy to discriminate. Section 149 (the 
Public Sector Equality Duty) lists the characteristics known as ‘protected 
characteristics’ against which we have to test for discrimination. These 
characteristics are gender, race/ethnicity, religion and belief, sexual orientation, age, 
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity and disability. 
 
 
3.0 Identifying Impacts across protected characteristics 

 

Protected 
characteristic 

Recommendations/mitigating actions  

Gender 
 
 

The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 
discriminatory against any identified group. 

Age 
 
 

Younger people are less likely to participate in this type of 
consultation exercise.  Information will be provided to Hugh Baird  
College, Sefton Young Advisors and to local schools to try and 
encourage this age group to participate.  The Pop-up event will be 
held during the school holidays to encourage this age group to 
participate. 

Disability 
 
 

Hard copies of documentation will be available in fully accessible 
locations and will also be available in a large print format if 
required.  The Pop-Up event will also be held in a fully accessible 
location.  Drop in sessions will enable those with additional 
literacy needs to take part in the consultation. 

Race/Ethnicity  
 

Will use Sefton’s access to a translation service if required. 

Religion or 
belief  

Although there are religious festivals during the consultation 
period there is plenty of time for people to get involved outside 
these festival periods. 

Sexual 
Orientation 

The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 
discriminatory against any identified group. 

Gender The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 

Page 75

Agenda Item 7



Agenda Item 7b 

Reassignment  discriminatory against any identified group. 

Pregnancy and 
maternity  

The consultation process will be accessible to all and will not be 
discriminatory against any identified group. 

 
 
 

 

 

Page 76

Agenda Item 7



Agenda Item 8 
 

1 
 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel  
 
Date: 22nd September 2017 
 
Title: Proposal to undertake Consultation and Engagement Activity: Family 

and Children’s Centres  
 
Report of:  Dwayne Johnson, Director of Health and Social Care 
 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
1.1 To receive information with regard to the consultation plans being developed for 

Family and Children’s Centres. 
 
2. Background 
 
2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is to 

coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and consultation, in 
accordance with the standards for engagement and consultation. 

 
2.2 In March 2017 the Council approved the proposed development of locality 

working.  This consultation relates to that proposal. 
 
3. Family and Children’s Centres 
 
3.1 Following discussions with head teachers, centre managers, and visits to 

Centres alongside Cabinet Members a proposed strategic approach for 
Children’s Centres and Family Centres was shared.  The proposal is for a new 
0-19 Family Well Being Service. 

 
3.2 The discussions outlined the existing outdated funding mechanism for  

children’s centres and proposals for the development of a new funding formula 
which will ensure children and families who need services most receive a 
targeted offer (whilst not losing the universal community focus of the service). 

 
3.3 In summary the discussions provided significant detail on the context of 

Children’s Centres and Family Centres – including their budget, performance 
data, role, functions and finally staffing.   

 
3.4 The strategic direction for a Family Well-being service clearly outlines the vision 

and approach the Council wishes to adopt. It was proposed that we widen the 
offer to 0-19 by providing outreach support into schools and the community.  
This would complement the approach the Council has taken surrounding health 
and well-being services and their approach to multi-disciplinary working in the 
context of working within defined bases. 

 
3.5 Key benefits for the introduction of a family well-being service are to: 

 

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 
 

2 
 

 Respect families starting points, and intervene early to provide the 
required support in a timely way. 

 Develop a “whole family” approach where root cause issues can be 
addressed and families limit the number of times they need to tell their 
story 

 Ensure a focussed response on providing improved outcomes for the 
children and young people themselves on occasions where the “whole 
family” approach does not work. 

 Ensure that the child's voice is heard and that safeguarding thresholds are 
maintained through service redesign and delivery  

 Ensure a targeted and evidence-based approach for those children and 
families who are in the greatest need 

 Support children and families that are failing to thrive or reach their 
potential, particularly with regard to attachment, language acquisition and 
early childhood milestones    

 Promote good mental health and emotional wellbeing for all children and 
young people, parents and care givers in Sefton and improve access to 
targeted support to address health inequalities. 

 
3.6 The vision is embedded within a broader Early Intervention and Prevention 

Strategy.  The purpose of this broader strategy, which aligns to the Family and 
Children Centre vision, is to enable an early resolution to problems faced by 
people, thereby developing their resilience.  The model tackles the multiple 
needs of households in a joined up way and at an earlier stage. 

 
 
4. Proposals for changes to Family and Children Centres. 
 
4.1 The proposals for remodelling and developing a family well-being service is part 

of a wider transformation process relating to Early Intervention and Prevention 
– Locality Teams.  The proposals will align to three identified localities in the 
North, Central and South of the Borough.   

 
4.2 It is proposed that each locality will be served by a lead Family and Well-being 

‘hub’.  A Manager will be allocated to each locality. The lead ‘hub’ centre will be 
responsible for co-ordinating the delivery of the family well-being service and 
managing the distribution of activity and staff within their area according to 
need. The impact on staffing will be a reduction of management. Frontline and 
admin staffing will be reduced according to the formula. This approach will 
allow for increased joint planning and management across the whole locality 
and particularly in relation to service design and improvement 

 
4.3 In order to account for the large geographical area; it is proposed that the North 

and Central localities will be sub divided into two service delivery hubs – this 
will ensure that the budget and staffing can be aligned closer to communities 

 
4.4 It is expected that each lead ‘hub’ will be supported by the majority of remaining 

Children’s Centres and Family Centres, which will operate as link or satellite 
centres and will effectively be delivery points together with outreach activities 

 

Page 78

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 
 

3 
 

4.5 Although the existing Family Centre functions differ to Children Centres; the 
data scrutinised, clearly identifies, in some cases, similar cohorts of families 
attending both family and children’s centres. By integrating the centres it is 
possible to offer a more universal offer which is in line with our strategic 
approach. This will provide improved outcomes with more joined up partnership 
work. A renewed focus will be on health and well-being, identifying early help 
and supporting families through periods of need. It will also provide some 
opportunities to identify efficiencies through staffing changes. 

 
4.6 The proposed new model will support the concept as outlined in the Statutory 

Guidance for Children's Centres 2013, which states that children’s centres are 
as much about making appropriate and integrated services available, as they 
are about providing premises in particular geographical areas. In practical 
terms, this means less centres will be registered as standalone children's 
centres with Ofsted. The remaining centres will be listed as linked or satellite 
sites and will no longer be subject to individual inspections. 

 
4.7 The proposed operating model is that services will also be delivered from a 

number of key sites, either community or school based.  This network of 
delivery points will ensure services can be delivered close to the community 
and ensure travel times are not drastically increased for service users 
accessing the provision.  It will enable a more focused and targeted approach 
to meeting resident needs and priorities 

 
4.8 Further detailed work will be required to determine conclusively which buildings 

the offer will be delivered from, however, the strategic vision is committed to 
delivering the offer as close to the community as possible. 

 
 
5.  Engagement with Providers and Service Users 

 

5.1 Engagement activity will take place with providers and partners on the 
proposed new vision and models to seek their views and ideas to shape how 
services could look in the future. 

 
5.4 The key messages given throughout the process by the Council and 

partners/providers will be open and transparent.  They key messages will be 
developed into a comprehensive communications plan.  Key messages 
include:- 
 

 The new models are about working together and about delivering services 
from key sites 

 

 Not all existing service users may be impacted by the proposed changes 
– it will depend on individual circumstances 

  

Page 79

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 
 

4 
 

 
 
6  The Consultation and Engagement methodology 

6.1 The draft principles and processes for the consultation and engagement 
process are shown for Panel Members to review and comment on.   

 
6.2 The consultation will be underpinned by a robust Communications Plan and will 

consist of proposals to merge Family Centre and Children’s Centre functions 
into a Family Well-being Service and to establish/change the offer in each 
centre and delivery point.  

 
6.3 The intention of consultation is to provide: 

 Adequate time for those wishing to respond to have the opportunity to do 
so 

 Sufficient information for those being consulted to form a considered view 
on the matters on which they are being consulted 

 A tailored consultation process to the scale of the changes 

 A clear account of the views of those who use family centres and 
children’s centres as well as social work teams and the broader 
community which can be taken into account when re-designing the 
service 

 
6.4 The methods will be supported by a number of tools, which may include the 

following if required: 
 Frequently Asked Questions 
 Press & Media briefings 
 Posters 

 
6.5 Some of the specific barriers that we anticipate may happen include reaching 

groups who do not currently use the centres and those who are seldom heard, 
these include: 

 Young parents 

 Families from minority ethnic groups 

 Disabled parents 

 Parents of disabled children / children with SEN 

 Gypsies and Travellers  

 People who have difficulty reading, writing or speaking English 

 Parents on low income 
 
6.6 The engagement process will seek to overcome these barriers by ensuring 

there is open, accessible, timely information, (for all), using the range of 
methods described in the communications and consultation methodology and 
by also working with partners, including the MAD group and Young Advisors.   

 
  

Page 80

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 
 

5 
 

 
7. Engagement Schedule 
 
7.1 The engagement schedule for this work is described in Annex A 
 
 
8 Consultation plan 
 

8.1 A consultation plan has been drafted and there will be regular web-based and 
user group briefings to ensure accurate information is made available. 

8.2 The engagement process will be monitored to ensure effective delivery, and will 
be adapted as and when required to ensure people are supported to fully 
participate. 

 

8.3 A resource from the Communication Team has been identified and discussions 
have taken place on the right level of information to provide that doesn’t raise 
unnecessary concern but at the same time provides factual information. 

 
9.  Conclusion 
 
9.1 The combined impact of demographic pressures and reduced government 

funding presents a significant challenge that will require a sustained and 
robust Council wide response with continued engagement with key partners. 
Only a strategic approach can mitigate the demand and financial pressures 
that will continue to be faced by the council.  

 
9.2 Change can be difficult, challenging and sometimes uncomfortable for service 

users, families, carers and the workforce but the Council is at a point where 
doing more of the same or trying to do more of the same with less is going to 
fail people, families and the communities.  

 
 
10. Legal Department Comments 
 
10.1 The Council’s Legal Department have been consulted on the consultation and 

engagement proposals.  The Legal Department has made comments in relation 
to the proposed timetable and consultation period and these have been shared 
with the relevant Officers. 

 
 

11. Recommendations 

11.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 

  a) Appraise this targeted engagement and consultation approach, 

methodology and plan and approve 

  b)  Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide feedback 
 

Page 81

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 
 

6 
 

 
 

Annex A KEY DATES 

 

   

 

 

  

Date 2017 Activity 

11th September  Update head teachers 

13th September  Update Trade Unions 

14th September  Consultation with Family Centre and Children’s Centre 
employees commences 

15th September Public Engagement & Consultation Panel papers 
published 

22nd September Public Engagement & Consultation Panel 

25th September Consultation commences (subject to Panel comments) 

26th September  Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Children’s Services 
and Safeguarding) 

17th November  Public Engagement and consultation closes 

20th November Analysis of responses takes place 

7th December Cabinet Consider consultation response  

Page 82

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 
 

7 
 

Project Title: Family and Children’s Centres 

Is your project linked to: 

An existing service 

Lead officer: Dwayne Johnson Contact no  934 3333 

Designation Director of Health & Social 
Care 

E-mail Dwayne.johnson@sefton.gov.uk 

Which of the Council’s Priorities does your Consultation relate to (please tick) 

 The Economy 

 The Most Vulnerable 

 Health and Wellbeing 

 Reshaping the Council 

 Resilient Communities 

 The Environment 

Which of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Priorities does your Consultation relate to (please tick) 

 
Ensure all children have a positive start in life  
 

 
Support people early to prevent and treat avoidable illnesses and reduce inequalities in health  
 

 
Support older people and those with long term conditions and disabilities to remain independent 
and in their own homes  
 

 
Promote positive mental health and wellbeing  
 

 
Seek to address the wider social, environmental and economic issues that contribute to poor 
health and wellbeing  
 

 Build capacity and resilience to empower and strengthen communities 

 

Does this consultation relate to an item on the Forward Plan?  If so which one? 

Family and Children’s Centres  

Other partners involved (please state if internal or external to the Council) 

External   Service Users, providers, VCF,  

Internal  Health & Wellbeing, Public Health, Schools & Families, Children’s ~Social Care, Legal, 
Communications, Transformation, Finance & ICT, Neighbourhoods, Built Environment, 
Workforce 

(Planned) start date (Planned) end date: What is the allocated budget? 

25th September 2017 17
th
 November None – within existing resources 

Page 83

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 
 

8 
 

Background/Rationale 

Following discussions with head teachers, centre managers, and visits to Centres alongside Cabinet 
Members a proposed strategic approach for Children’s Centres and Family Centres was shared.  The 
proposal is for a new 0-19 Family Well Being Service. 
 
The discussions outlined the existing outdated funding mechanism for children’s centres and proposals for 
the development of a new funding formula which will ensure children and families who need services most 
receive a targeted offer (whilst not losing the universal community focus of the service).. 
 
In summary the discussions provided significant detail on the context of Children’s Centres and Family 
Centres – including their budget, performance data, role, functions and finally staffing.   

 
 

Aims & Objectives 

 
The strategic direction for a Family Well-being service clearly outlines the vision and approach the Council 
wishes to adopt. It was proposed that we widen the offer to 0-19 by providing outreach support into schools 
and the community.  This would complement the approach the Council has taken surrounding health and 
well-being services and their approach to multi-disciplinary working in the context of working within defined 

bases. 
 
This consultation and engagement process will be aligned with, and will not duplicate, consultation and 
engagement processes scheduled as part of any further consultation on the overall budget. This will ensure 
that the public and service users are not over-consulted, receive consistency of message and delivers value 
for money. 

Target Audience 

 Individuals 
 Families 
 Hard to Reach Groups 
 Voluntary Community Faith sector organisations/groups/networks and forums 
 Partners 
 Childminder 
 Children’s Centre Advisory Board 
 Children’s Centre staff 
 Family Centre staff 
 Social Work Teams 
 Early Years setting or provider 
 General public 
 Health partner 
 Parent/ grandparent/ carer 
 Volunteer 
 Sefton Council staff 
 Children and young people 
 

Methodology 

The draft principles and processes for the consultation and engagement process are shown for Panel 
Members to review and comment on.   
 
The methods will be supported by a number of tools, which may include the following if required: 

 
 Web-based Frequently Asked Questions 
 Press & Media briefings if required 
 Easy Read material/briefing sheets 
 Questionnaires 
 Targeted information to those registered with centres 
 Posters and information leaflets 

Page 84

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 
 

9 
 

 Information briefing sessions at centres or convenient local facilities 
 Area Committees 

 
 

Potential barriers to involvement and action to overcome barriers 

Some of the specific barriers that we anticipate may happen include: 
Some of the specific barriers that we anticipate may happen include reaching groups who do not currently 

use the centres and those who are seldom heard, these include: 

 Young parents 

 Families from minority ethnic groups 

 Disabled parents 

 Parents of disabled children / children with SEN 

 Gypsies and Travellers  

 People who have difficulty reading, writing or speaking English 

 Parents on low income 
 
The engagement process will seek to overcome these barriers by ensuring there is open, accessible, timely 
information, (for all), using the range of methods described in the communications and consultation 
methodology and by also working with partners, including the MAD group and Young Advisors and also 
Community Connectors 

 

How will you protect the confidentiality of participants?  

Engagement processes will be conducted in accordance with Data Protection procedures. 

How and when do you intend to report or publish the findings? 

The findings will be published and shared on a phased basis subject to the timetable being confirmed using a 
range of inclusive methods. 

Level and type of patient/public engagement (place a tick in all that apply) 

Tick Level Description 

X Informing 
Giving people information about something (a limited opportunity for 
them to be involved) 

X Consulting/Engagement Getting people’s views to help you develop/change your services/plans 

 Deciding together Making decisions using patients’ and public’s views 

 Acting together 
Local people will be involved in making decisions and reviewing your 
plans/services 

 
Supporting local 
initiatives 

Local people will have the opportunity to lead, develop and deliver 
activities independently 

Does your project include: 

 Yes/No If No please explain 

Questionnaire 
(Please attach – even if it is only in draft 
format) 

Yes  

Other materials  
(i.e. promotional materials) 

Yes Poster and information leaflets in all centres 

Page 85

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 
 

10 
 

Examples of assistive technology 

Internet FAQ 

Information posted directly to those registered with 
the centres 

A stakeholder map 
(a tool to help you identify your target 
audience – included in toolkit) 

Yes See consultation plan 

Reference to existing data or information 
that has already been completed  
(i.e. recent consultation/ research where 
results can be used to inform your 
consultation) 

Yes Data on usage is available 

Any other information you would like to provide? 

None 

 

  

Page 86

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 
 

11 
 

Appendix.  Methods of consultation. 
 

Product – what 
we will produce 

People – who 
will be 
involved 

Process – how 
we will do it 

Resources – 
what we will 
need 

Timing – 
when it will 
happen 

Presentation Director of 
Health and 
Social Care 

Question and 
answer sessions 
at Family and 
Children’s 
Centres and 
other appropriate 
venues 

Staff time In period to 
be planned 

Letter with 
questionnaire to all 
registered users of 
centres from over 
the last 12 months 

PMO staff Encourage 
completion with 
link via social 
media 

Staff time and 
questionnaires 

From 
25.09.17 

Questionnaires To be placed in 
libraries, family 
centres, 
children’s 
centres, health 
clinics 

Family Centre 
staff and 
Children’s 
Centres outreach 
workers to 
identify key 
places for 
questionnaires  
: 
Each service 
user to be given 
a questionnaire 
and ‘signed for’ 
as proof of 
receipt.  
 
A record will be 
kept to ensure all 
service users are 
included in the 
distribution 

Questionnaires From 
25.09.17 

Questionnaires – 
with staff support 
for completion 

To be used at 
parenting 
groups, Health 
Clinics and 
other local non 
children’s centre 
venues by 
outreach 
workers 

Centre managers 
and outreach 
workers to target 
key groups and 
work with 
partners to gain 
responses from 
existing groups  
 
This will include 
children.  

Staff time 
questionnaires 

From 
25.09.17 

Consultation with 
users of partners 

To encourage 
participation by 

Centre managers 
and outreach 

Staff time From 
25.09.17 

Page 87

Agenda Item 8



Agenda Item 8 
 

12 
 

Product – what 
we will produce 

People – who 
will be 
involved 

Process – how 
we will do it 

Resources – 
what we will 
need 

Timing – 
when it will 
happen 

services  seldom hear 
groups 

workers. 

Questionnaires 
with partners 

To be used to 
seek views from 
key partners 

Manager’s to 
send out to key 
partners 

Staff time From 
25.09.17 

Consultation on 
portal web page 

To enable 
online 
responses 

Manager to 
submit online if 
handed response 

Staff time From 
25.09.17 

Press releases Raise 
awareness that 
consultation is 
happening 

Officer to link 
with corporate 
communications 
team 

Staff time 
 

22.09.17 

Email information 
to staff to support 
participation 

Raise 
awareness that 
consultation is 
happening 

Head of Service  Staff time 22.09.17 

Contact with 
elected members 

To promote 
consultation and 
seek views of 
elected 
members 

Director/Head of 
Service – to 
make contact 
with ward 
members 

Staff time Continuous 

Focus 
Groups/Interviews 

To be used to 
seek views from 
interested 
parties 

Senior Council 
Officers 

Staff time In period and 
to be 
planned 

In addition the usual staff consultation following HR procedures will take place 
 

 

Page 88

Agenda Item 8



 

 

 
  

 

 

 Have your say on changing Family and Children Centres to 
Family Wellbeing Bases 

 

 

www.sefton.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 89

Agenda Item 8

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/


 

 

Family and Children’s Centres 
 

Tell us what you think 
 

Introduction  
 

The Council is proposing changes to how families access information and 
advice, activities and receive support.    
 
Our communities have told us that our teams need to be more joined up as 
this will make their lives easier.  To help to achieve this, we propose to 
redesign our overall offer at our Children’s and Family Centres so that people 
can access support more easily, and it will cover ages 0 to 19 year olds.  We 
propose to do this by creating main bases that will be known as Family 
Wellbeing Centres, complemented by a number of smaller bases.   
 
It may mean that some people will access our offer in a different place or in a 
different way. This will enable us to make the most of the limited amount of 
money that we have available to provide this important support to 0 to 19 year 
olds and their families. 
 

What is this questionnaire for? 
 

We want your views on our proposed change. 
 

Background to why we are looking at this 
 
There is lots of information available for you here on our Vision 2030, core 
priorities and the financial challenges we face. 
 

When will the consultation start and end? 
 

The consultation will start on 25th September 2017 and finishes on 17th 
November 2017. 
 

  

Page 90

Agenda Item 8



 

 

How to get involved 
 
To give us your views, please go to 
https://www.engagespace.co.uk/sefton/default.aspx and fill in the on-line 
questionnaire or complete this questionnaire and send it to the address 
below. 
 
Copies of this consultation document are available in other formats such as 
large print, audio, easy read, or another language on request.  To request this 
service please call 0151 934 3733. 
 

If you would like help to give us your comments or how to fill in the 
questionnaire please phone 0151 934 3193. 
 

Response forms should be received by the Council no later than 17th 
November 2017. 
 
If you have not filled in the form online please return this paper copy to the 
address below or hand it into your nearest Family or Children’s Centre:  
 

PMO,  
Sefton Council 
7th Floor Merton House 
FREEPOST LV 7340 
BOOTLE 
L20 1YX 
  

What we will do with your feedback 
 
Your feedback will help us to shape our future offer. 
 
The information you give us is private and confidential and we will follow the 
law including the Data Protection Act 1998.   
 
The information will be destroyed after it is no longer required. 
 
We will publish the results of the consultation on the Sefton Council Website 
including a summary of questions/comments received and any responses 
given.  If you would like to receive a copy please email 
yourseftonyoursay@sefton.gov.uk or telephone  0151 934 3733. 
 
 
  

Page 91

Agenda Item 8

https://www.engagespace.co.uk/sefton/default.aspx
mailto:yourseftonyoursay@sefton.gov.uk


 

 

Tell us what you think  
 

We would like to ask you some questions to help us understand what you 
think of our ideas. We want to make sure we talk to as many different people 
as possible so please can you tell us a bit about you and your interest in the 
consultation. 
 
Part One.  About you and your current use of centres. 
 
1. What best describes you?  Please tick all that apply 
 

Parent/ grandparent/ carer 
 
Childminder 
 
Children’s Centre Advisory Board 
 
Children’s Centre employee 
 
Family Centre employee 
 
Early Years provider 
 
Member of the public 
 
Health partner 
 
Volunteer 
 
Sefton Council staff 
 
Other organisation (please specify) 
 

 
 

 
 
  

Page 92

Agenda Item 8



 

 

2. What is your postcode?   

If you are responding on behalf of yourself and your family please put your 

home postcode, or that of the organisation, if on behalf of the organisation.  

Please be reassured we will not use this information to identify you.  It will be 

used to understand different needs by area.  

 
 

 
 

3a.   Do you have any children and/or caring responsibility for any 

children? Please tick one box only. 

 

Yes  No  

 
b. If you answered yest how many of your children or those that you care for 
are aged? 
  

0-5  

6-11  

12-19  

 
 
c. Do any of your children have a disability?   

 

Yes  No  

 
 If yes is the disability related to (please tick all that apply) 
 

Mobility  

Learning Disability  

Mental Health  

Other  

 
d,  Do you have a disability?   

  

Yes  No  

 
 If yes is the disability related to (please tick all that apply) 
 

Mobility  

Learning Disability  

Page 93

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Mental Health  

Other  

 
 
4. Are you or your partner pregnant or planning to become pregnant? 
 

Yes  No  

 
 
5 Do you use either a Children and/ or Family Centre as a parent/ carer or 
part of your work?  Please choose one answer only 
 

a.  

Yes  No  

 
If you have answered yes, please tell us which (please tick all that apply) 
 

Centre Centres 
used 

Cambridge Children’s Centre  

First Steps (Kings Meadow & Farnborough Road)  

Freshfield Children’s Centre  

Hudson Children’s Centre  

Linaker Children’s Centre  

Litherland Children’s Centre  

Marie Clarke Family Centre  

Netherton Children’s Centre  

Netherton Family Centre  

Seaforth Children’s Centre  

Seaforth Family Centre  

Southport Family Centre (Talbot Street)  

Springwell Children’s Centre  

Thornton  

Waterloo Children’s Centre  

Don’t know  

None of these  

 
If you have answered no, please go to question 9 

  

Page 94

Agenda Item 8



 

 

If you have answered yes please answer the following: 
 

b. How do you get there?  (please tick all that apply) 
 

Walk  

Cycle  

Use public transport  

Car  

Taxi  

Friend’s or family car  

Other  

 
6.  a. Which centre services have you used in the last 12 months.  Please 
tick all that apply. 
 

Health and Wellbeing   

Health and Wellbeing services for advice on a range of 

issues such as healthy eating, child development, oral 

health, safety, exercise, emotional wellbeing, infant feeding 

workshops, breastfeeding, smoking cessation, vitamin 

collection   

 

Health visiting services  

Access to support for low mood/loneliness e.g. Shine, Think 

Differently Cope Differently 

 

Access to mental health support for children and adults e.g. 
Relax Kids, Mellow, Theraplay 

 

Antenatal services  

Prenatal services  

Safeguarding visits at home  

Home safety visits and installation e.g. installation of home 
safety equipment  

 

Mediation/ relationship support  

Counselling  

Access to support for families with Special Educational 
Needs & Disability (SEND) 

 

Early learning  

Activities and events that focus on getting children ready for 

schools e.g. mark making, messy play, early reading skills 

 

Page 95

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Early learning e.g. Creche, mark making  

Stay and play sessions 
 

 

Speech, language and communication advice and support  
 

 

Developing parents life skills  

Parenting courses e.g. Triple P, No Xcuses, Strengthening 

Families, 5 to Thrive play sessions 

 

Attachment support programmes: e.g. Beautiful Beginnings, 

Beautiful Minds, Baby Massage 

 

Support into employment (volunteering courses, building 

self-confidence, help and advice on completing job 

applications 

 

Support into employment (working towards gaining 

qualifications)  

 

Understanding finances/ access to welfare/ debt advice 
 

 

Housing advice  

Family cookery classes  

Family group work often completed at home  

Practical family support and advice often delivered at home 
 

 

Other Services  

International groups 
 

 

Dad’s club  

Supervised contact  

Drop in sessions – parents and carers supporting each 
other 
 

 

Other please specify  

 

  

Page 96

Agenda Item 8



 

 

b. Does anyone from our Children’s and Family Centre team(s) come to 
your home? 
 

Yes  No  

 

If yes why? 
 
 
 
 
7. How often do you use the Centre?   
 

Daily  

Weekly (not every day but at least once or more a 
week) 

 

Monthly (not every week but at least once or more a 
month) 

 

Infrequently (sometimes I drop in)  

 
8. Which of these other places do you use and which would you feel 
comfortable accessing services for children and families at in future?  Please 
choose all that apply. 
 
 

 Currently 
access 

Would feel 
comfortable 
accessing 

Hospitals e.g. pre and post-natal 
services 

  

Leisure centres   

Parks and coast   

Church Halls   

Libraries   

Halls attached to other places of 
worship e.g. mosque, temple 

  

Community Centres   

Village Halls   

Schools   

Something else (please specify) 
 

  

 

  

 

Page 97

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Part Two.  About the proposals 

The table below outlines our proposals for where we would have our main 
centres and additional complimentary bases. 
 

Locality 

area 

Proposed Main Base Additional Complementary  

Bases  

North  Talbot Street - Potential Family 

Wellbeing centre 

 

Linaker 

Freshfield 

Farnborough & Kingsmeadow  

South  Waterloo - Potential Family 

Wellbeing centre  

 

Or 

 

Marie Clarke - Potential Family 

Wellbeing centre  

 

Cambridge 

 

Seaforth (the place that you 

currently use may change) 

 

 

Central 

 

Netherton – Potential Family 

Wellbeing  Centre 

 

 

Hudson 

 

Litherland 

 

Thornton 

 

Springwell 

 
9. Do you agree with the above proposals? 
 

Yes  No  

 
If no, please tell us your ideas for potential alternative locations. 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 98

Agenda Item 8



 

 

10. From an accessibility perspective which base are you be most likely to 
use in the future under our new proposals? 
 

Talbot Street - Potential Family 
Wellbeing Centre 

 

Linaker 
 

 

Freshfield 
 

 

Farnborough & Kingsmeadow  
 

 

Waterloo - Potential Family Wellbeing 
centre  
 

 

Marie Clarke - Potential Family 
Wellbeing centre  
 

 

Cambridge 
 

 

Seaforth (the place that you access 
this may change) 
 

 

Netherton – Potential Family 
Wellbeing  Centre 
 

 

Hudson 
 
 

 

Litherland 
 
 

 

Thornton 
 
 

 

Springwell 
 

 

 

 
  

Page 99

Agenda Item 8



 

 

11. How will you get there?  (please tick all that apply) 

 

Walk  

Cycle  

Use public transport  

Car  

Taxi  

Friends or family car  

Other  

 

12.  How do you usually get about? 

 

Walk  

Cycle  

Use public transport  

My Own Car  

Taxi  

Friends or family car  

Other  

 
 

13. How do you find out what is going on in the local area? 
 

Local Offer (usually accessed by families with children or 
young people with a disability or educational need) 

 

Sefton Directory (Council)  

Sefton Directory (CVS)  

Sefton website  

Children’s Centre website  

Internet search e.g. Google, Bing  

Anything else? Please specify  

 
 
14.  Do you have any other comments or suggestions in relation to this 
proposal?  Please write your answer in the box below. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Page 100

Agenda Item 8



 

 

THANK YOU 

 

ABOUT YOU 
 
You do not have to complete the next few questions if you don’t want to.  
These questions help us to understand who is using our services and taking 
part in our surveys.   
 
You can find more information about why we collect this information in the 
“What’s it got to do with you?” booklet which is available on the Council 
website and in Council buildings. 
 
 

1. What is the first part of your postcode  
(the first 3 or 4 letters and numbers) 

 
2. Are you  
 

Male   Female  

 

3. What is your age? 

 

16-17 

  

18-29 

  

30-39 

  

40-49 

 

50-59  60-69  70-79  80-84  

85+        

 
 

4. Disability: Do you have any of the following (please tick all that apply): 
 

Physical Impairment  Visual Impairment  

Learning Difficulty  Hearing Impairment/deaf  

Mental health/mental distress  Long term illness that 
affects your daily activity 

 

Other (please specify)    

 
 
 
 

 Please read the following statement … 
 

 

 

Page 101

Agenda Item 8



 

 

 
 If you have ticked any of the boxes above, or you have cancer, diabetes 

or HIV this would be classed as ‘disability’ under the legislation.  Do you 
consider yourself to be ‘disabled’? 

 

Yes  No  

 
 

5. Ethnicity – do you identify as …. 

Asian: 

 

Bangladeshi  Indian  

Pakistani  Other Asian background  

 

 Black 
 

African  British  

Caribbean  Other black background  

 

 Chinese 

Chinese  Other Chinese 
background 

 

 

 Mixed Ethnic Background:- 

Asian and White  Black African and White  

Black Caribbean and 
White 

 Other mixed  

 

 White 

British  English  

Irish  Scottish  

Welsh  Polish  

Latvian  Gypsy/Traveller  

Other White background    

 

  

Page 102

Agenda Item 8



 

 

The following questions are a little more personal and you can choose 
to stop here if you wish, however it would be really helpful if you would 
consent to complete …  

 

6. Do you have a religion or belief? 
 

Yes  No  

 

  
If you ticked yes, please tick one of the following 
 

Buddhist  Christian  

Hindu  Jewish  

Muslim  Sikh  

No religion    

Other – please specify     

 
 
 

7. How would you describe your sexual orientation? 
 

Heterosexual  Bisexual  

Gay  Lesbian  

 
 
 

8. Do you live in the gender you were given at birth? 
 

Yes  No  

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 103

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



 Agenda Item 8b 
 

Interim Equality Impact Assessment: Changing Family and Children’s Centres 
to Family Wellbeing Centres 

 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1  The Equality Act 2010 outlines how public bodies must have due regard to: 
 

1. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that 
is prohibited by or under this act 

2. Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 

3. Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
 

2.0  Protected Characteristics 
 
2.1  Equality Act 2010 is clear that there are particular characteristics that are 

intrinsic to an individual against which it would be easy to discriminate. Section 
149 (the Public Sector Equality Duty) lists the characteristics known as 
‘protected characteristics’ against which we have to test for discrimination. 
These characteristics are gender, race/ethnicity, religion and belief, sexual 
orientation, age, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity and disability. 

 
 
3.0 Identifying Impacts across protected characteristics 
 
3.1 The proposed model will ensure that provision will be available in the local area 

and as close to the community as possible.  Not all existing service users may 
be impacted by the proposed changes – it will depend on individual 
circumstances, however, all people with protected characteristics will continue 
to be able to access services. 
 

3.2 In terms of consultation, and to ensure that those with protected characteristics 
are able to take part in the consultation, we will seek to overcome any barriers 
by having open, accessible, timely information.  In addition we will have staff 
available to support people to take part in the consultation and we will work with 
partners including the MAD group and Young Advisors and also Community 
Connectors to support the consultation.   Partners will also be requested to 
promote the consultation to people who use health services delivered from 
centres.   

 

Protected 
characteristic 

Recommendations/mitigating actions  

Gender 
 

Traditionally mothers tend to access services in Family and 
Children’s Centres more than fathers.   
We will endeavour to utilise existing groups such as Dad’s Groups 
to encourage participation and there will also be targeted 
information supplied to all parents.  Staff will be available to 
support people to take part in the consultation. 

Age Most users of the centres are parents including young parents.  

Page 105

Agenda Item 8



 Agenda Item 8b 
 

 Children and young people may be less aware of the proposals 
and the consultation.   
Young Advisors and the MAD Group will be assisting with the 
consultation to enable young client groups to be able to take part.  
Age appropriate information will be available.  Staff will be 
available to support people to take part in the consultation.   

Disability 
 
 

People whose disability affects how they communicate may find it 
more difficult to express their views.   
Additional time and resources will be available including having 
questionnaires available in other formats upon request and an 
Easy Read version will be available.  Staff will be available to 
support people to take part in the consultation.  Assistive 
technology, where appropriate, will be used. 

Race/Ethnicity  
 

People who have difficulty reading, writing or speaking English 
may find it difficult to take part in the consultation.  There may be 
cultural barriers in taking part as people may wish to speak to a 
person of the same gender or ethnicity, information may not be in 
an appropriate format.   
Community Connectors together with staff will be available to 
support people to take part in the consultation.  Other formats and 
languages, where appropriate and upon request, will be available 
to support people to take part in the consultation. 

Religion or 
belief  

There may be cultural barriers in taking part in consultations, 
information may not be in an appropriate format.  There may be 
barriers in taking part as people may wish to speak to a person of 
the same gender or ethnicity because of their religion or belief.   
Other formats and languages, where appropriate and upon 
request, will be available to support people to take part in the 
consultation.  Staff will be available to support people to take part 
in the consultation. 

Sexual 
Orientation 

 

Gender 
Reassignment  

 

Pregnancy and 
maternity  

Most users of the centres are parents including young parents.  
Young Advisors and the MAD Group will be assisting with the 
consultation to enable young client groups to be able to take part. 
Staff will be available to support people to take part in the 
consultation.   

 
 

Page 106

Agenda Item 8


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Consultation and Engagement Panel held on 7th July 2017
	6 Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity - Council Tax Reduction Scheme
	6a. Council Tax Reduction Scheme -  Consultation Paper 2018-19 V6
	6b. Council Tax Reduction Scheme -  EIA-Review Consultation
	6c. Council Tax Reduction Scheme - Easy Read Questionnaire

	7 Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity - Bootle Town Hall Heritage Complex
	7a. Bootle Town Hall Heritage Complex - Consultation questionnaire
	7b. Bootle Town Hall Heritage Complex - Equality Impact Assessment

	8 Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity - Family & Children's' Centres
	8a. Family and Childrens Centres 20170912 Questionnaire Final v1.3
	8b. Family and Childrens Centres - EIA


